














AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Approval of a One-Year Contract Extension with Clements Cleaning Service to 
Provide Janitorial Services for the Edgerton Community Building/City Hall for 2017 

 

Department:  Administration 

  

Background/Description of Item: Since February 2012, the City of Edgerton has contracted with 
Clements Cleaning Service to provide janitorial services for the Edgerton Community Building/City Hall.  
Clements Cleaning Service continues to provide excellent service and therefore, staff would recommend 
approval of a one-year extension as allowed by the contract.  
 
The cost of the monthly service is $585 for City Hall and City Hall Annex (305 E Nelson). The cost of this 
contract extension was allocated as part of the 2017 annual budget process. The scope of work includes 
the cleaning and janitorial services necessary to maintain Edgerton Community Hall and City Offices in a 
clean and orderly condition in accordance with general commercial practices as listed below.  
 
Weekly tasks include:  

 Vacuum carpeted floors 
 Dry mopped and/or sweep linoleum floors.  
 Clean/dust all window sills, furniture, kitchen counters, table tops and similar horizontal surfaces 
 Empty wastebaskets and recycle bins.  
 Restrooms 
 Wet mop floors 
 Clean sinks, toilets and mirrors.  
 Replenish toilet tissue and paper towels. Toilet tissue and paper towels supplied by the City. 

 Clean water fountains 
 Clean entrance doors and office window glass.  
 Damp mop linoleum 
 Remove soiled areas and spots from the carpet and upholstered chairs 
 
Quarterly/annual task as needed 
 Scrub and wax linoleum floors. Remove old wax and apply new wax (liquid water-emulsion wax only) 
 Dust and/or clean tops of doors, cabinets, baseboards, exposed pipes, etc.  
 Dust and remove spots from walls , woodwork 
 Vacuum carpets with heavy duty carpet cleaner 
 
Enclosure: Contract with Clements Cleaning Service 

 

Recommendation:  Approve a One-Year Contract Extension with Clements Cleaning Service to Provide 
Janitorial Services for the Edgerton Community Building/City Hall for 2017 

 

Funding Source: General – Facilities – Building/Ground Maintenance  

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator 
Date: December 7, 2015 









 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Final Acceptance of 2016 Chip Seal Program and Authorize Final Payment to 

Harbour Construction, Inc 

 

Department:  Public Works Department 

 
 

Background/Description of Item:  
 
The Chip Seal Program has been completed. Public Works Staff along with BG Consultants have completed 
a final walk though on each of the treated sections of roadway. Staff and the Construction Inspector 
identified a few locations that will need to be fixed. These locations are scheduled to be remedied by no 
later than May 2017. If there is availability to access oil earlier (spring 2017) Harbour Construction, Inc. 
will complete the work at that point. Additionally Staff will continue to inspect the sections for failures over 
the next few months as winter comes and goes, any additional items will be addressed on an as needed 
basis.  
 
The Chip Seal Program consisted of sealing approximately 34,065 square yards of roadway, the sealing 
was completed in one (1) week with the first (1st) sweeping following twenty-four (24) hours after the 
sealing was complete and the second (2nd) sweeping complete the following week. This completed the 
2016 Chip Sealing program and to the best of our knowledge Harbour Construction Inc. has done all the 
necessary items outlined in the contract document. The maintenance period will begin once this program 
has been finalized.   
 
Enclosure: Chip Seal Contract – Harbour Construction, Inc 

     Harbour Construction, Inc – Punch List 

 

Recommendation: Approve Final Acceptance of 2016 Chip Seal Program and Authorize Final Payment 
to Harbour Construction, Inc 

 

Funding Source: Special Highway  

 
Prepared by:  Karen Kindle, Accountant and Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent  
Date: 11/29/2016 
 
 
 
 





 

 
 
 
 

12/1/2016 
 
To: Beth Linn,  
 
Fr: Trey Whitaker  
  
Subject: Chip Seal Final Acceptance  

 
As of November 29th 2016 Harbour Construction Inc. has completed all the work for the Chip 
Seal Program 2016. Staff along with BG Consultants identified locations that Harbour 
Construction Inc. will fix no later than May 2017, however; remedied by no later than May 
2017; if there is availability to access oil earlier (spring 2017) Harbour Construction, Inc. will 
complete the work at that point. To the best of our knowledge Harbour Construction Inc. has 
done all the necessary items outlined in the contract document. The maintenance period will 
begin once this program has been finalized. 
 
Thank you,  
 

 
 
Trey Whitaker 
Public Works Superintendent  
 





AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Renewal of a Cereal Malt Beverage License application for 2017 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

  

Background/Description of Item: Application for the following business has met the necessary 
requirements for issuance of cereal malt beverage license and recommended for approval by staff. License 
fees are established in 3-109 of the Edgerton Code in the amount of $35.00 for retail. A separate stamp 
fee of $25.00 for the State of Kansas has been collected.   
 
The application and recommendations are available for review in the City Clerk’s Office. 
 
License Name   Address 

120266 Jay Kay Inc.  101 East Morgan 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  Ordinance 574 

 

Recommendation:  Approve Renewal of a Cereal Malt Beverage License for Jay Kay Inc. at 101 East 
Morgan for 2016 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: December 7, 2016 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Approval of a Resolution No. 12-08-16A Declaring the Boundaries of the City of 
Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

  

Background/Description of Item: Each year in which territory has been added or excluded from the 
city the City of Edgerton adopts a resolution declaring the boundaries of the city as required by K.S.A. 12-
517.  
 
Exhibit A, was prepared by the City Engineer, entitled “Boundary Description of the City of Edgerton, 
Johnson County, Kansas” to describe and depict the legal boundaries of the city. As described in the 
resolution, the City Clerk will file, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-518, certified copies of this Resolution with the 
Johnson County Clerk, the Johnson County Election Commissioner, the Johnson County Register of Deeds, 
and the Kansas State Transportation Engineer. 
 
Enclosure: Resolution 12-08-16A 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):  K.S.A. 12-517 

 

Recommendation:  Approve a Resolution No. 12-08-16A Declaring the Boundaries of the City of 
Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: December 4, 2016 



RESOLUTION NO. 12-08-16A 

RESOLUTION DECLARING THE BOUNDARIES OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS 

 WHEREAS, the Governing Body is required under K.S.A. 12-517 to declare by 

Resolution the entire boundary of the City in any year in which territory has been added 

to or excluded from the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  Declaration of Boundary.  The Governing Body of the City hereby 

finds and determines that the boundaries of the City of Edgerton, Johnson County, 

Kansas as of December 31, 2016 are as described and depicted in the attached “Exhibit 

A” entitled “Boundary Description of the City of Edgerton, Johnson County, Kansas.” 

 Section 2.  Filing of Certified Copies.  The Governing Body hereby directs and 

instructs the City Clerk to file, pursuant to K.S.A. 12-518, certified copies of this 

Resolution with the Johnson County Clerk, the Johnson County Election Commissioner, 

the Johnson County Register of Deeds, and the Kansas State Transportation Engineer. 

 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 

immediately after its adoption by the Governing Body.  

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 

EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 8th DAY OF DECEMBER 2016.  

      
ATTEST:     CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 
______________________________ By: _______________________________ 
Janeice Rawles, City Clerk          Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________________ 

Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney  



1 

 
EXHIBIT A 

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE CORPORATE LIMITS 

OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
Commencing at the Northeast corner of Section 12, Township 15 South, Range 21 East, 
Johnson County, Kansas: thence West along the North line of said Section 12, a distance of 
261.4 feet, to the point of beginning; thence South 0°44’53” East a distance of 507.4 feet; 
thence North 89°57’07” West a distance of 65.74 feet; thence North 0°44’53” West a distance of 
318.04 feet; thence North 89°57’07” East a distance of 56.94 feet; thence North 0°44’53” West a 
distance of 44 feet more or less to the southeast corner of the KCPL substation tract; thence 
West along the south line of the KCPL substation tract a distance of 100 feet to the southwest 
corner of said KCPL tract; thence North along the West line of said KCPL tract a distance of 100 
feet to the South right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 56; thence west along the South right-of-way 
of U.S. Highway 56 a distance of 264 feet more or less; thence South 16°02’00” East a distance 
of 767.51 feet; thence South 01°16’00” East a distance of 193.84 feet; thence S.69°03'E. 220.49 
feet; thence S.88°38'E. to a point on the West right-of-way line of West 6th Street; thence along 
the West right-of-way line of West 6th Street North 200.50 feet; thence S.88°38'E. to the East 
line of said Section 12; thence South along said East line to a point which is 208.71 feet North of 
the Southeast corner of the Northeast ¼ of said Section 12; thence West parallel with the South 
line of said Northeast ¼, 228.71 feet; thence South 208.71 feet to the South line of said 
Northeast ¼; thence East along said South line, 228.71 feet to the Southeast corner of said 
Northeast ¼; thence South, along the East line of said Section 12 to a point 1,007.56 feet North 
of the Southeast corner of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 12; thence West 1,324.79 feet along 
the South line of the North 100 acres of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 12; thence South 20 
feet along the West line of the East ½ of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 12; thence West 642 
feet along the North line of the South 30 acres of the West ½ of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 
12; thence South 471.43 feet; thence West 292.8 feet; thence South 515 feet to a point on the 
South line of said Section 12; thence East along the South line of said Section 12 to the 
Southwest corner of Section 7, Township 15 South, Range 22 East; thence continuing East 
along the South line of said Section 7 to the Southeast corner of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Southwest ¼ of said Section 7; thence North along the East line of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Southwest ¼ of said Section 7 to a point on the South line of the North ½ of the Southwest ¼ of 
said Section 7, which line is also the South line of Glendell Acres, Second Plat; thence East 
along said South line a distance of 463 feet to the Southeast corner of said Plat; thence North 
along the East line of said Plat to a point on the South line of Lot 41, Glendell Acres, First Plat; 
thence East along the South line of Glendell Acres, First Plat to a point 10.0 feet West of the 

Southeast corner of Lot 51, Glendell Acres, First Plat Amended; thence South 1130’42” West, 

464.48 feet; thence North 8931’32” East, 90.24 feet to a point on the Northwest line of the 
Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad Company right-of-way; thence Northeasterly along 
said Northwesterly railroad right-of-way line to a point on the South line of the Northeast ¼ of 
said Section 7; thence East along the South line of said Northeast ¼ a distance of 384 feet, 
more or less, to the Southwest corner of Lot 1, County Clerk’s Subdivision of the Northeast ¼ of 
said Section 7; thence North and Northeasterly along the West and North lines of said Lot 1 to 
the Northeast corner thereof; thence South 84 feet to the Northwest corner of Lot 2 of said 
County Clerk’s Subdivision; thence South along the West line of said Lot 2, approximately 566 
feet to a point that is 150 feet North of the South Line of said Lot 1; thence Westerly parallel to 
and 150 feet North of the South line of said Lot 1 to a point 225 feet from the East line of said 
Lot 1; thence Southerly parallel to and 225 West of the East line of said Lot 1 approximately 150 
feet to the South line of said Lot 1; thence Easterly along the South line of said Lot 1 
approximately 225 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 1, said point also being the 
Southwest corner of said Lot 2; thence East along the South line of said Lot 2 to the Southeast 



2 

 
corner of said Lot 2; said point also being the Southeast corner of the Northeast ¼ of said 
Section 7 and the Northwest corner of the Southwest ¼ of Section 8, Township 15 South, 
Range 22 East; thence South along the West line of the Southwest ¼ of said Section 8 to the 
Southwest corner of said Section 8; thence South along the West line of the Northwest ¼ of 
Section 17, Township 15 South, Range 22 East, Johnson County, Kansas, 378 feet; thence 
West parallel to the North line of the Northeast ¼ of Section 18, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East, Johnson County, Kansas, 576.20 feet; thence North parallel to the East line of said 
Northeast ¼, 378 feet to a point on the North line of said Northeast ¼; thence West along said 
North line of said Northeast ¼ to the Northwest corner of said Northeast ¼; thence South along 
the West line of said Northeast ¼, 920.40 feet; thence West parallel to the North line of the 
Northwest ¼ of said Section 18, approximately 1,140 feet to a point on the Easterly line of a 
tract of land conveyed to the Southern Kansas Railway Company in that certain warranty deed 
dated April 26, 1899 and recorded June 15, 1899 in book 79 at page 626 of register of deeds 

records of Johnson County, Kansas; thence South 17 25’ East, along said Easterly line of said 

tract, 200 feet; thence South 72 35’ West, along the Southerly line of said tract, 237.4 feet to a 
point on the West line of the East ½ of said Northwest ¼ of Section 18; thence South along said 
West line, 345 feet, to the point of beginning of a certain tract of land conveyed to the Southern 
Kansas Railway Company in that certain warranty deed dated April 26, 1899 and recorded June 
15, 1899 in book 79 at page 624 of register of deeds records of Johnson County, Kansas; 

thence South 26 East along the Northeasterly line of said tract, 400 feet; thence South 26 
West along the Southeasterly line of said tract, 195 feet to a point on said West line of the East 
½ of said Northwest ¼; thence South along said West line to the Southwest Corner of the East 
½ of said Northwest ¼ of Section 18; thence East along the South line of said East ½ to the 
Southeast corner of said Northwest ¼ of Section 18; thence South 904.4 feet along the West 
line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 18 to the North right-of-way line of Interstate 35; 
thence Northeasterly along the North right-of-way line of said I-35 to a point on the North line of 
the Southeast Quarter of said Section 18, said point being 1017.6 feet West of the Northeast 
corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 18; thence Northeasterly along said right of way 
line of Interstate 35 approximately 1,325.7 feet to a point on said existing right of way line of 
Interstate 35 that is 100 feet West of and 879.9 feet North of  the Southeast corner of the 
Northeast ¼ of said Section 18; thence Northeasterly continuing along said right of way line of 
Interstate 35, 555.1 feet; thence East 25.0 feet to a point on the East line of said Northeast ¼, 
said point being 1429.9 feet North of the Southeast corner of said Northeast ¼; thence East 
25.00 feet to a point on the Northerly right-of-way of I-35, thence South 07°14’53” East along 
said right-of-way, 704.57 feet; thence South 85°51’43’ East along said right-of-way, 746.60 feet; 
thence North 78°07’04” East along said right-of-way, 401.10 feet; thence North 73°49’42” East 
along said right-of-way, 1,316.03 feet, to a point on the East line said Northwest ¼; thence 
North along said East line to the Northeast corner of said Northwest ¼; thence continuing North 
along the East line of the Southwest ¼ of Section 8, Township 15 South, Range 22 East 
1,320.38 feet to the South line of an existing cemetery; thence West along the South line of the 
existing cemetery to the Southwest corner of said cemetery; thence North along the West line of 
said cemetery to the Northwest corner of said cemetery; thence East along the North line of said 
cemetery to a point on the East line of said Southwest ¼; thence North along said East line to 
the Northeast corner of said Southwest ¼; thence West along the North line of said Southwest 
¼ to the Northwest corner of said Southwest ¼ and the Southeast corner of Lot 2 of County 
Clerk’s Subdivision of the Northeast ¼ of said Section 7; thence North along the East line of 
said Lot 2 to the North line of the South 775.50 feet of said Lot 2 of said County Clerk’s 
Subdivision; thence West along the North line of the South 775.50 feet of said Lot 2 to a 
Northwesterly line of said Lot 2; thence Northeasterly along the Northwesterly lines of said Lot 2 
to a point on the Southeasterly right-of-way line of the original right-of-way of the Kansas City 
and Santa Fe Railroad Company, now the Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railway Company, 
said point being 100.00 feet Southeasterly of and measured at right angles to the original center 



3 

 
line of main track of said Railroad Company; thence Northeasterly along said right-of-way line, 
165.0 feet, more or less, to a point on the Northeasterly right-of-way line of the S.M. Crockett 
Road No. 61; thence Southeasterly along said road right-of-way to the Southeast corner of Lot 4 
of the County Clerk’s Subdivision of part of the Northeast ¼ of Section 7 and part of the 
Northwest ¼ of Section 8, said Southeast lot corner being a point on the East line of Section 7, 
1,152.3 feet, more or less, North of the Southeast corner of the Northeast ¼ of Section 7; 
thence Northerly along the East line of Section 7 to the Southwest corner of Lot 1 of County 
Clerk’s Subdivision of the Northwest ¼ of Section 8; thence Northeasterly along the Southeast 
line of said Lot 1 a distance of 1,110 feet, more or less; thence Northwest on a line that is 
perpendicular to the Southeast line of said Lot 1, a distance of 50.0 feet, more or less, to the 
South right-of-way line of the existing Atchison, Topeka, and Santa Fe Railroad Company 
tracks; thence Westerly along said South right-of-way line to a point on the Eastward extension 
of the North right-of-way line of Nelson Street; thence Westerly along said North right-of-way 
line, a distance 235.0 feet, more or less, to a point on the Westerly right-of-way line of the 
Atchison, Topeka, and Santa Fe Railroad Company; thence Northeasterly along said right-of-
way a distance of 175 feet, more or less, to a point on the West right-of-way line of Sixth Street; 
thence Northerly along the West right-of-way line of Sixth Street a distance of 180.0 feet, more 
or less; thence Easterly 60.0 feet to a point on the Northwesterly right-of-way line of the 
Atchison, Topeka, and Santa Fe Railroad Company, common to the Southeast corner of Lot 7 
of County Clerk’s Subdivision; thence Northeasterly along said right-of-way, a distance of 843.0 
feet to the Northeasterly corner of Lot 8; thence Westerly along the Northerly boundary of Lot 8 
to a point on the centerline of Sixth Street; thence Northerly 140 feet, more or less, to the North 
line of Section 7; thence Easterly long the North line of Section 7 to the Northwesterly right-of-
way of the Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad Company; thence Northeasterly along said 
Northwesterly railroad right-of-way to the East line of Section 6, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East; thence North along said East line 90 feet to a point 2,026 feet South of the Northeast 
corner of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 6; thence Southwesterly along the Northerly right-of-
way line of U.S. Highway 56 and a curve to the right 670 feet, more or less; thence continuing 
along said Northerly right-of-way line North at right angles 30 feet, more or less; thence 
Southwesterly along said right-of-way 625 feet to a point on the centerline of Bull Creek, said 
point being 160 feet, more or less, North of the South line of said Section 6; thence continuing 
along said Northerly right-of-way line North and West along the centerline of said Bull Creek to a 
point 280 feet, more or less, North of the South line of said Section 6; thence continuing along 
said Northerly right-of-way line Northerly 60 feet; thence continuing along said Northerly right-of-
way line Westerly 95 feet; thence continuing along said Northerly right-of-way line Southerly 
perpendicular to the South line of said Section 6, a distance of 260 feet to a point 56 feet North 
of said South line of said Section 6; thence continuing along said Northerly right-of-way line 
Westerly 523 feet, more or less, to a point 54.6 feet North of the Southwest corner of the 
Southeast ¼ of said Section 6; thence continuing along said Northerly right-of-way line South 
along the West line of the Southeast ¼ of said Section 6, 10 feet; thence continuing along said 
Northerly right-of-way line Westerly to a point 40 feet East of and 40 feet North of the Southwest 
corner of the Southwest ¼ of said Section 6; thence continuing along said Northerly right-of-way 
line West parallel to and 40 North of the South line of said Section 6 to the West line of said 
Section 6; thence continuing along said Northerly right-of-way line West parallel to and 40 feet 
North of the South line of the Southeast ¼ of Section 1, Township 15 South, Range 21 East, 
261.4 feet; thence South 40 feet to a point on the South line of said Section 1 and the Point of 
Beginning. 
 



4 

 
AND ALSO the following described tract: A part of the Northwest ¼ and the Southwest ¼ of 
Section 17, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, more particularly described as 
follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southeast corner of the North ½ of said Southwest ¼; thence North 89°32’17” 
West along the South line of the North ½ of said Southwest ¼ a distance of 1,674.61 feet; 
thence North 0°06’49” West a distance of 297.00 feet; thence North 89°32’17” West a distance 
of 765.15 feet to a point on the Southeasterly right-of-way of I-35; thence North 5°18’35” East 
along said right-of-way a distance of 766.23 feet; thence North 51°55’54” East along said right-
of-way a distance of 1,028.81 feet; thence North 73°49’42” East along said right-of-way a 
distance of 1,627.82 feet to the East line of said Northwest ¼; thence South 0°06’21” West 
along the East line of said Northwest ¼ and Southwest ¼ a distance of 2,167.35 feet to the 
point of beginning, except any part in roads or highways; 
 
AND ALSO the following described tract: Commencing at the Northwest corner of the 
Southwest ¼ of Section 11, Township 15, Range 21; thence South 00°00’00” East along the 
West line of said Southwest ¼, 58.71 feet; thence North 90°00’00” East, 20.00 feet to a point of 
the existing East right-of-way line of County Line Road and the Point of Beginning; thence North 
90°00’00” East, 210.00 feet; thence South 00°00’00” East 210.00 feet; thence North 90°00’00” 
West, 210.00 feet to a point on said East right-of-way line; thence North 00°00’00” East along 
said East right-of-way line, 210.00 feet to the Point of Beginning: (This Tract Not Shown) 
 
AND ALSO the North Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 14, Range 22, 
Johnson County, Kansas EXCEPT the North (27) rods (455.5 feet) of the West (12) roads (198 
feet) thereof 
 
AND EXCEPT 
Beginning on the North line of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 14, Range 22, 
Johnson County, Kansas, at a point 198 feet East of the West line of said Quarter Section; 
thence South 89 degrees, 55 minutes, 45 seconds East along said North line a distance of 24 
feet; thence South 0 degrees, 36 minutes, 41 seconds East a distance of 397.50 feet; thence 
North 89 degrees 55 minutes, 45 seconds West a distance of 24 feet; thence North 00 degrees 
36 minutes 41 seconds West a distance of 397.50 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
AND EXCEPT 
Beginning on the West line of Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 14, Range 22, at a 
point 397.50 feet South of the Northwest corner thereof; thence South along said West line a 
distance of 48 feet; thence South 89 degrees 55 minutes 45 seconds East a distance of 218 
feet; thence North 0 degrees 36 minutes 41 seconds West a distance of 48 feet; thence North 
89 degrees 55 minutes 46 seconds West a distance of 48 feet; thence North 89 degrees 55 
minutes 45 seconds West a distance of 218 feet to the point of beginning, EXCEPT beginning at 
a point on the West line of the Southeast Quarter of Section 32, Township 14, Range 22, 
Johnson County, Kansas, 397.50 feet South of the Northwest corner of said Quarter Section; 
thence South along the West line of said Section 32, a distance of 48 feet; thence East 198 feet 
on a line bearing South 89 degrees 55 minutes 45 seconds East; thence North 48 feet on a line 
bearing North 0 degrees 36 minutes 41 seconds West; thence 198 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
 



5 

 
AND EXCEPT 
A tract of land located in and being a part of the North Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 
32, Township 14, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 32; thence South 
89 degrees 18 minutes 55 seconds East along the North line of said Southeast Quarter a 
distance of 1320.08 feet; thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 53 seconds West a distance of 
264.85 feet; thence South 89 degrees 59 minutes 07 seconds East a distance of 278.00 feet to 
the true point of beginning; thence continuing South 89 degrees 59 minutes 07 seconds East a 
distance of 862.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 53 seconds West a distance of 
190.00 feet; thence South 67 degrees 04 minutes 37 seconds West a distance of 390.00 feet; 
thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 53 seconds West a distance of 342.35; thence North 89 
degrees 59 minutes 07 seconds West a distance of 502.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 00 
minutes 53 seconds East a distance of 684.70 feet to the point of beginning, expect that part in 
public roads. 
 

AND 
 

A tract of land located in and being a part of the North Half of the Southeast Quarter of Section 
32, Township 14, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 32; thence South 
89 degrees 18 minutes 55 seconds East along the North line of said Southeast Quarter at a 
distance of 1320.08 feet; thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 53 seconds West a distance of 
264.85 feet; thence South 89 degrees 59 minutes 07 seconds East at a distance of 278.00 feet 
to the true point of beginning; thence continuing South 89 degrees 59 minutes 07 seconds East 
a distance of 862.00 feet; thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 53 seconds West a distance of 
190.00 feet; thence South 67 degrees 04 minutes 37 seconds West a distance of 390.00 feet; 
thence South 00 degrees 00 minutes 53 seconds West a distance of 342.35 feet; thence North 
89 degrees 59 minutes 07 seconds West a distance of 502.00 feet; thence North 00 degrees 00 
minutes 53 seconds East a distance of 684.70 feet to the point of beginning, except that part in 
public roads. 
 
ALSO 
 
All that part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, Range 22, in Johnson County, 
Kansas, lying North and West of the North right of way line of U.S. Highway 56 as now 
established and West of the West bank of a small branch running North and South across the 
Northeast corner thereof and containing 70 acres more or less. 
 
NOTE:  The aforesaid legal description was contained in the original conveyance. However, 
said legal description now excepts Deeds filed in Book 1147, Page 195; Book 1263, Page 725; 
Book 1436, Page 879; Book 1450, Page 267; Book 1571, Page 304; Book 2667, Page 371; 
Book 3143, Page 314; Book 3568, Page 121; Book 4835, Page 632. 
 

AND 
 

Beginning at the Northeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, Range 
22, Johnson County, Kansas; thence West along the North line of said Northeast Quarter a 
distance of 553.65 feet; thence S. 23 ° 10’ E. along the top bank of a Branch a distance of 
494.93 feet more or less to the Northerly Right-of-Way of K-56 Highway; thence N. 48° 11’13”E. 
along said Right-of-Way a distance of 480.01 feet more or less to the East line of said Northeast 
Quarter; thence N.0° 29’53”E. a distance of 135 feet more or less to the Point of Beginning, 



6 

 
together with an easement described as:  Right of Ingress and Egress Easement; all of the 
Southeasterly 15 feet (being parallel to the Northerly Right-of-Way of K-56 Highway) of the 
above described tract and the East 15 the above described tract. 
 
NOTE:  The aforesaid legal description was contained on the original conveyance. However, 
said legal description now accepts a portion of Deeds filed in Book 3143, Page 314; and Book 
3568, Page 121. 
 
All that part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, Range 22, lying Northwesterly 
of the West right of way line of Highway No. 50 (now known as Highway No. 56). 
 
The South Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, Range 22, except the 
following tract:  Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Northwest Quarter; thence West 193 
feet, more or less, to a point 175 feet North at right angles of the center line of the Atchison, 
Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad (now known as the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad); 
thence in an Easterly direction parallel to said railroad 250 feet, more or less, to the East line of 
said Northwest Quarter; thence South along said line 158 feet, more or less, to the place of 
beginning. 
 

AND 
 

All that part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, Range 22, lying Northwesterly 
of the West right of way line of Highway No. 50 (now known as Highway No. 56). 
 
The South 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 32, Township 14, Range 22, Johnson County, 
Kansas, containing 80 acres more or less; EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING: Beginning at the SE 
corner of the SE 1/4  of the SE 1/4 of said Section 32; thence Northerly along the East line of 
said SE 1/4 , a distance of 55.00 feet; thence Westerly parallel to the South line of said SE 1/4, 
a distance of 830.00 feet; thence Southerly 55.00 feet to said South line; thence Easterly along 
said South line to the point of beginning except that part now existing in road right-of-way for 
191st Street, containing 0.67 acres, more or less. 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, 
Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas thence South 1402.5 feet; thence East 1200 feet to the 
North line of US. 56 Highway, thence North 46° 33’ 26” East 585.35 feet, along said North line 
of US. 56 Highway, thence West 440 feet; thence North 1000 feet; thence West 300 feet; 
thence South 513 feet; thence West 850 feet; thence North 513 feet; thence West 35 feet to the 
point of beginning. 
 
NOTE:  The above legal description was on the original Warranty Deed. Since said Warranty 
Deed a portion of the above legal description, described as follows, has since been conveyed: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, 
Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, thence South 1402.5 feet, thence East 470 feet to the 
point of beginning, thence East 730 feet, thence North 46 ° 33’ 26” East 585.35 feet, thence 
West 440 feet, thence North 93 feet, thence West 715 feet, thence South 495.5 feet to the point 
of beginning. 
 



7 

 
AND 

 
Beginning at the Northeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of Section 5, Township 15, Range 
22, Johnson County, Kansas; thence West along the North line of said Northeast Quarter a 
distance of 553.65 feet; thence S. 23 ° 10’ E. along the top bank of a Branch a distance of 
494.93 feet more or less to the Northerly Right-of-Way of K-56 Highway; thence N. 48° 11’13”E. 
along said Right-of-Way a distance of 480.01 feet more or less to the East line of said Northeast 
Quarter; thence N.0° 29’53”E. a distance of 135 feet more or less to the Point of Beginning, 
together with an easement described as:  Right of Ingress and Egress Easement; all of the 
Southeasterly 15 feet (being parallel to the Northerly Right-of-Way of K-56 Highway) of the 
above described tract and the East 15 the above described tract. 
 
NOTE:  The aforesaid legal description was contained on the original conveyance. However, 
said legal description now accepts a portion of Deeds filed in Book 3143, Page 314; and Book 
3568, Page 121. 
 
 
ALSO: 
 
 
All that part of the southwest quarter of Section 33, township 14, Range 22, which lies 
northwesterly of the right of way of state highway known as U.S. Highway no. 50 (now known as 
US Highway No. 56) as said highway is described in deed recorded in Book 155 of Deeds at 
page 69, containing less the exception 90 acres more or less, Johnson County, Kansas 
 
 
ALSO:  ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 883 AND 894 
 
 
TRACT 1: 
 
 
All that part of the southwest quarter of Section 33, Township 14, Range 22, which lies 
northwesterly of the right of way of state highway now known as U.S. Highway No. 56 as said 
highway is described in deed recorded in Book 155 of Deeds at page 69, containing less the 
exception 90 acres more or less, Johnson County, Kansas. 
 
EXCEPT 
 
The part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, Township 14 South, 
Range 22 East of the 6th PM in Johnson County, Kansas, lying West of the existing fence line 
and more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the West Quarter corner of Section 33, Township 14, Range 22 East: Then 
South 00° 02’ 04” East, along the West line of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter 
of Section 33, a distance of 196.00 feet to the point of beginning.  Then following the existing 
fence line, the following fourteen courses: South 21° 51’ 03” East, 21.55 feet, South 85° 47’ 21” 
East 29.69 feet, South 15° 17’ 19” East 91.21 feet, South 06° 50’ 34” East 67.48 feet, South 00° 
46’ 13” West 71.41 feet, South 03° 34’ 03” East 48.69 feet, South 02° 48’ 19” West 20.02 feet, 
South 06° 33’ 37” West 26.17 feet, South 15° 54’ 27” West 14.55 feet, South 09° 33’ 34” West 
213.65 feet, South 00° 30’ 16” East 244.21 feet, South 00° 23’ 41” West 133.50 feet, South 00° 
45’ 37” West 159.01 feet, South 14° 08’ 19” West 28.61 feet, to the South line of the Northwest 



8 

 
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 33; Then North 89° 20’ 57” West, along that South 
line, a distance of 19.79 feet to the Southwest corner of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest 
Quarter of Section 33; Then North 00° 02’ 04” West, along the West line of the Northwest 
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, a distance of 1132.06 feet to the point of 
beginning. Containing 1.082 acres M/L. Bearings are based on the West line of Section 32, 
Township 14 South, Range 22 East, being true North. 
 
AND EXCEPT 
 
A tract of land in the Southwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 33, Township 14, 
South, Range 22 East, Johnson County, Kansas; more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Section 33; thence Northerly along the West line of 
said Section 33, a distance of 55.00 feet; thence Easterly parallel to the South line of said 
Section to a point of the western right-of-way line of U.S. Highway 56; thence Southwesterly 
along the West right-of-way line of said highway to a point on the South line of said Section 33; 
thence Westerly along the South line of said Section 33 to the point of beginning, except that 
part now existing in road right-of-way for 191st Street, containing 0.16 acres, more or less. 
 
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION NO. 4F221433-2001 
 
TRACT 2: 
 
Section 34, SW. 1/4 of Section 26, South 1/2 of Section 27, SW. 1/4 and East 1/2 of Section 33, 
All Being in being in Township 14 South, Range 22 East, ALSO the NE. 1/4 of Section 3, 
Township 15 South, Range 22 East 
 
All that part of Section 34, the Southwest Quarter of Section 26, the South Half of Section 27, 
the Southwest Quarter and East Half of Section 33, being in Township 14 South, Range 22 
East, Johnson County, Kansas, together with a portion of the Northeast Quarter and the 
Northwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22 East in said County and State, 
all being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 34; thence South 01 
degree 56 minutes 21 seconds East along the East line of said Quarter Section, a distance of 
2,652.11 feet to the Southeast corner of said Northeast Quarter, being also Northeast corner of 
the Southeast Quarter of said Section 34; thence South 01 degree 56 minutes 06 seconds East 
along the East line of said Quarter Section, a distance of 2,651.94 feet to the Southeast corner 
of said Southeast Quarter; thence South 88 degrees 09 minutes 02 seconds West along the 
South line of said Quarter section, a distance of 1,316.87 feet to the Southwest corner of the 
East Half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 34, being also the Northeast corner of the 
West Half of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 3; thence South 01 degrees 20 minutes 28 
seconds East along the East line of the West Half of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 3, a 
distance of 2,666.23 feet to the Southeast Corner of the West Half of the Northeast Quarter of 
said Section 3; thence South 88 degrees 20 minutes 46 seconds West along the South line of 
the West Half of said Northeast Quarter, a distance of 540.09 feet to the Southeast Corner of 
the West 768.4 feet of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 3; thence North 01 degree 31 
minutes 15 seconds West along the East line of the West 768.4 feet of said Northeast Quarter, 
a distance of 1739.32 feet to a point 925.00 feet southerly of the Northeast corner of the West 
768.4 feet of said Northeast Quarter said point being the Southeast corner of Ordinance No. 
894; thence along the South line at Ordinance No. 894, West 388.4 feet parallel to the North line 
at said Quarter Section; thence along the South line of said Ordinance No. 894 Northwesterly 



9 

 
370.98 feet to the Southwest corner of said Ordinance No. 894 being 30 feet Easterly of the 
West line of said Quarter Section; thence along the West line of said Ordinance No. 894 North 
802.00 feet to a point on the North line of said Quarter Section, the Northwest corner of said 
Ordinance No. 894 and a Southerly line of Ordinance No. 883; thence South 88 degrees 09 
minutes 02 seconds West along the South line of Southeast Quarter of said Section 34, a 
distance of 30.00 feet to the Southwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 34, 
being also the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 34; thence South 88 
degrees 10 minutes 27 seconds West along the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said 
Section 34, a distance of 360.36 feet to the Southeast corner of the tract of land described as 
the J.A. Pearce Tract in the 1892 Re-Survey of said Section 34; thence North 02 degrees 16 
minutes 32 seconds West along East line of said J.A. Pearce Tract to the North right-of-way line 
of West 191st Street; thence along the North right-of-way line of said 191st Street Westerly 
1520.50 feet more or less to the West line of the said J.A. Pearce Tract; thence along the west 
line of the said J.A. Pearce Tract, South to the Southwest corner of the said J.A. Pearce Tract, 
being also a point on the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 34 being the North 
line of the Northwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22 East; thence along 
the North line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 3, EAST to a point 1035.25 feet East of 
the Northwest corner of said Section 3 (said point being the Northeast corner of Annexation 
Ordinance No. 903); thence along the East South and West lines of said Ordinance No. 903 the 
following 5 courses (1) S. 0° E. 355.05 feet; thence (2) S. 90° E. 284.30 feet; thence (3) S. 
0°18’01” W. 2300.09 feet to a point on the South line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 3; 
thence along the South line of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 3, (4) N. 89°44’38” W. 
1291.75 feet to the West Quarter corner of said Section 3; thence (5) N. 0°20’27” W. 2649.33 
feet to the Northwest corner of said Ordinance No. 903 being the Northwest corner of said 
Section 3 and the Southeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of Section 33, Township 14 South, 
Range 22 East; thence South 88 degrees 33 minutes 21 West along the South line of the 
Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, a distance of 2,634.02 to the Southwest corner of the 
Southeast Quarter of said Section 33, being also the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter 
of said Section 33; thence South 88 degrees 17 minutes 30 seconds West along the South line 
of said Quarter Section, a distance of 2,107.45 feet to a point on the Southeasterly right-of-way 
line of the most Northwesterly tracks of the B.N.S.F. Railroad (being the most Northwesterly of 
the two B.N.S.F. Railroad tracks as they now exist through said Section 26, 27, 33 and 34 and 
formerly being the Atchison, Topeka, and Santa Fe Railroad Company), said point being 65 feet 
Southeasterly of the centerline of the main track of said railroad, as measured perpendicular to 
the centerline thereof; thence Northeasterly along the Southeasterly right of way line of the most 
Northwesterly tracks of said B.N.S.F. Railroad, the following courses and distances; thence 
North 46 degrees 47 minutes 43 seconds East, 65 feet Southeasterly of and parallel with the 
centerline of said main track, a distance of 2,783.57 feet to a jog in said Southeasterly right of 
way line, being also a point on the East line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 33; thence 
North 02 degrees 24 minutes 33 seconds West along the East line of the Southwest Quarter of 
said Section 33, being also along a jog in said Southeasterly right of way line, a distance of 
19.81 feet to a point 50 feet Southeasterly of the centerline of the main track of said railroad, as 
measured perpendicular to the centerline thereof; thence North 46 degrees 47 minutes 43 
seconds East, 50 feet Southeasterly of and parallel with the centerline of said main track, a 
distance of 1,791.25 feet to a jog in said Southeasterly right of way line; thence South 43 
degrees 12 minutes 17 East, perpendicular to the last described course and being along a jog in 
said Southeasterly right of way line, a distance of 50 feet to a point 100 feet Southeasterly of the 
centerline of the main track of said railroad, as measured perpendicular to the centerline 
thereof; thence North 46 degrees 47 minutes 43 seconds East, 100 feet Southeasterly of and 
parallel with the centerline of said main track, a distance of 1,670.24 feet to a jog in said 
Southeasterly right of way line, being also a point on the East line of the Northeast Quarter of 
said Section 33; thence North 02 degrees 35 minutes 02 seconds West along the East line of 



10 

 
the Northeast Quarter of said Section 33; thence North 02 degrees 35 minutes 02 seconds 
West along the East line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 33, being also along a jog in 
said Southeasterly right of way line, a distance of 65.87 feet to a pint of 50 feet Southeasterly of 
the centerline of the main track of said railroad, as measured perpendicular to the centerline 
thereof; thence North 46 degrees 47 minutes 43 seconds East, 50 feet Southeasterly of and 
parallel with the centerline of said main track, a distance of 1,851.68 feet; thence Northeasterly 
along a curve to the right, tangent to the last described course and 50 feet Southeasterly of and 
coincident with the centerline of said main track, having a radius of 5,776.69 feet and a central 
angle of 14 degrees 59 minutes 22 seconds, an arc length of 1,511.27 feet to a jog in said 
Southeasterly right of way line , being also a point on the East line of the Southwest Quarter of 
said Section 27; thence South 01 degree 56 minutes 18 seconds East along the East line of the 
Southwest Quarter of said Section 27, being also along a jog in said Southeasterly right of way 
line, a distance of 55.82 feet to a point 100 feet Southeasterly of the centerline of the main track 
of said railroad, as measured radially to the centerline thereof; thence Northeasterly along a 
curve to the right, said curve being 100 feet Southeasterly of and coincident with the centerline 
of said main track, having an initial tangent bearing of North 61 degrees 32 minutes 15  second 
East, a radius of 5,726.69 feet and a central angle of 01 degrees 37 minutes 04 seconds, an arc 
length of 161.70 feet; thence North 63 degrees 09 minutes 19 seconds East, tangent to the last 
described curve an being 100 feet Southeasterly of and parallel with the centerline of the main 
track of said railroad, a distance of 835.32 feet to a jog in said Southeasterly right of way line, 
being also a point on the North line of the South Half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 
27; thence South 88 degrees 25 minutes 01 seconds West along the North line of the South 
Half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 27, being also along a jog in said Southeasterly 
right of way line, a distance of 117.16 feet to a point 50 feet Southeasterly of the centerline of 
the main track of said railroad, as measured perpendicular to the centerline thereof; thence 
North 63 degrees 09 minutes 19 seconds East, along a line 50 feet Southeasterly of and parallel 
with the centerline of the main track of said railroad, a distance of 2,035.09 feet to a point on the 
East line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 27; thence South 02 degrees 08 minutes 36 
seconds East along the East line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 27, being no longer 
along the Southeasterly right of way line of the most Northwesterly tracks of said B.N.S.F. 
Railroad, a distance of 1,602.74 feet to a point on the Southeasterly right-of-way line of the most 
Southeasterly tracks of the B.N.S.F. Railroad (being the most Southeasterly of the two B.N.S.F. 
Railroad tracks as they now exist through said Sections 26,27, 33 and 34 and formerly being the 
Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad Company), said point being 50 feet Southeasterly of 
the centerline of the main track of said railroad, as measured perpendicular to the centerline 
thereof; thence North 55 degrees 20 minutes 16 seconds East along the Southerly right-of-way 
line of said railroad, 50 feet Southeasterly of and parallel with the centerline of the main track of 
said railroad, a distance of 3,0864.04 feet to a pint on the East line of the Southwest Quarter of 
said Section 26; thence South 02 degrees 00 minutes 12 seconds East along the East line of 
the Southwest Quarter of said Section 26, a distance of 2,273.43 feet, to the Southeast corner 
of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 26; thence South 88 degrees 32 minutes 09 seconds 
West along the South line of said Section 26, a distance of 2,596.81 to the Point of Beginning. 
Subject to all covenants, restrictions, reservations and easements now of record thereon. 
 
ALSO INCLUDING: 
 
All the right-of-way as presently established for the most Northwesterly tracks of the B.N.S.F. 
Railroad (being the most Northwesterly of the two B.N.S.F. Railroad tracks (formerly being the 
Atchison, Topeka and Santa Fe Railroad Company), as the right-of-way now exists through the 
West Half of Section 26, the South Half of Section 27, the Northwest Quarter of Section 34, the 
Northeast Quarter and South Half of Section 33, ALSO, all of the right-of-way as presently 
established for the most Southeasterly tracks of the B.N.S.F. Railroad (being the most 



11 

 
Southeasterly of the two B.N.S.F.  Railroad tracks (formerly being the Atchison, Topeka and 
Santa Fe Railroad Company), as said right-of-way now exists through the Southwest Quarter of 
said Section 26, being in all Township 14 South, Range 22 East in Johnson County, Kansas. 
 

Containing a net area of 43,733,159 square feet of 1,003.975 acres, more or less, said 
net area includes the existing right-of- way reserved for 183rd Street and Four Corners 
Road and also includes the aforesaid B.N.S.F. Railroad right-of-way EXCEPT that part 
of said most Southeasterly tracks in said Section 26 and EXCEPT that part of said most 
Northwesterly tracks in said Section 26, 27, 33 and 34. Said net area also EXCLUDES 
the existing right-of-way reserved for Waverly Road and 191st Street, and 15.186 acres 
in Ordinance No. 894. 

 
 
ALSO:  Annexation Ordinance No. 900 
The East One-Third (1/3) of Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) excluding 1.66 acres in Highway of 
Section 9, Township 15, Range 22, in Johnson County, Kansas 
 
 
 
ALSO:  Annexation Ordinance No. 920 (and recorded in the District Court of Johnson County 
Case No. 12CV1979) 
 
 
Description: For WWTP Site 
 
A tract of land in the southeast quarter of Section 9, Township 15 South, Range 22 east of the 
6th p.m. in Johnson County, Kansas, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the south quarter of said Section 9, thence along the west line of the southeast 

quarter of said Section 9 
N.2°08’59”W. 365.07 feet to the south right-of-way line of I-35 highway (presently proposed 

right-of-way for KDOT Project No. 35-46 KA-1109-02); thence along the said right-of-
way line 

N.57°44’05”E. 774.44 to the point of beginning; thence continuing along the said south right-of-
way line the following three courses 

(1) N.57°44’05”E. 28.18 feet; thence 
(2) N.56°06’51”E. 503.92 feet; thence 
(3) N.63°13’19”E. 318.45 feet to a point on the west line of a tract conveyed to the Secretary of 

Transportation of the State of Kansas recorded in book 201106 on page 8131 at the 
Johnson County Register of Deeds; thence along the westerly line of the said Secretary 
of Transportation tract the following two courses 

(1) S.34°35’42”E. 492.68 feet; thence 
(2) N.87°37’04”E. 133.07 feet; thence 
S.2°16’42”E. 215.00 feet; thence 
S.87°43’18”W. 460.00 feet; thence 
S.2°10’15”W. 482.90 feet to a point 60.00 feet northerly of (measured perpendicular to) the 

south line of the southeast quarter of said Section 9; thence parallel to and 60.00 feet 
northerly of the south line of the southeast quarter of said Section 9 

S.88°10’10”W. 199.06 feet; thence 
N.34°35’42”W. 829.21 feet to the point of beginning, containing 14.438 acres. 
 
 



12 

 
 
ALSO:  Annexation Ordinance No. 952  
 
Parcel 1 
Beginning at the Northwest corner of the East ½ of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 15, 
Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas; thence South 330 feet; thence East 575.1 feet; thence 
North 330 feet; thence West 575.1 feet to the point of beginning, except that part in road and 
except the East 390.46 feet of the West 575.10 feet of the North 40.00 feet of the East ½ of the 
Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, excluding the 
existing road right-of-way. 
 
Parcel 2 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, 
Kansas, described as: Beginning at a point on the North line of said Northeast Quarter which is 
480 feet West of the Northeast corner of said Northeast Quarter; thence South 330 feet; thence 
West 264.0 feet, more or less, to a point which is 575.1 feet East of the West line of the East 
half of said Northeast Quarter; thence North 330 feet, more or less to a point on the North line of 
said Northeast Quarter which is 575.1 feet East of the Northwest corner of said East half; 
thence East along said North line 264.0 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning, except the 
North 40 feet thereof deeded for Street or Road Right-of-Way. 
 
Parcel 3 
The East 301.2 feet of the North 188 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 15, 
Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas; except that part thereof in roads. 
 
Parcel 4 
Beginning at the Northeast Corner of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 15, Range 22, 
Johnson County, Kansas; thence South 330 feet; thence West 480 feet; thence North 330 feet; 
thence East 480 feet to the Point of Beginning, except the East 301.2 feet of the North 188.0 
feet and also except that part in roads. 
 
Parcel 5 
Beginning 330 feet South of the Northeast corner of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 15, 
Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, thence South 330 feet; thence West 1319.4 feet; thence 
North 330 feet; thence East 1319.4 feet to the point of beginning, except any part in road. 
 
ALSO: Annexation Ordinance No. 975 (approved August 14, 2014) 
 
All that part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 09, Township 15 South, Range 22 East, Sixth 
Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas described as follows; Commencing at the 
Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 09; thence South 88 degrees 26 
minutes 35 seconds West along the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 09, a 
distance of 630.50 feet to a point on the Northerly right of way line for Interstate 35 as now 
established; Thence South 31 degrees 44  minutes 01 seconds West along said highway right 
of way, a distance of 512.96 feet; thence South 31 degrees 44 minutes 59 seconds West along 
said highway right of way, a distance of 277.13 feet; thence South 88 degrees 22 minutes 28 
seconds West; a distance of 985.18 feet; thence North 02 degrees 09 minutes 43 seconds 
West, a distance of 288.57 feet; thence North 61 degrees 23 minutes 59 seconds East, a 
distance of 820.43 feet to a point on the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 09; 
thence North 88 degrees 26 minutes 35 seconds East along the North line of the Southeast 
Quarter of said Section 09, a distance of 691.24 feet to the point of beginning containing 
659,710 square feet or 15.14 acres more or less.  



13 

 
 
ALSO:  Annexation Ordinance No. 943  
 
AN ORDINANCE CLARIFYING THAT ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 939 WAS NOT 
INTENDED TO, AND DOES NOT, INCLUDE WITHIN THE LAND ANNEXED AN EASEMENT 
CURRENTLY HELD BY THE CITY OF GARDNER, KANSAS 
 
Whereas, on August 8, 2013, the Edgerton City Council adopted Ordinance No. 939 annexing 
the following, legally described land into the City of Edgerton: 
 

All of the East Half of the West Half of the Southwest Quarter of Southwest Quarter of 
Section 35, Township 14, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas 
and 
All of the North Half of the West Half of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter of the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 14 South, Range 22, East of the Sixth 
Principal Meridian 
and 
All of the South Half of the West Half of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter of the 
Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 14 South, Range 22, East of the Sixth 
Principal Meridian 
and 
The west One-Fourth (W ¼) of the Southwest One-Forth (SW ¼) of the Southwest One-
Forth (SW ¼) of Section Thirth-Five (S 35), Township Fourteen (T 14) South, Range 
Twenty-Two (R 22) East of the 6th Principal Meridian, in Johnson County, Kansas, 
containing ten (10) acres more or less, subject to any public utility or pipeline easement 
or right-of-way of record, if any.  Except that part in street. 

 
Whereas, it was not the intention of the City Council to annex the following described easement 
held by Gardner, Kansas: 
 

A TRACT OF LAND IN THE WEST ONE QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 35, TOWNSHIP 14 SOUTH, RANGE 
22 EAST OF THE 6TH P.M. IN JOHNSON COUNTY, KANSAS, MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
BEGINNING AT A POINT 606.25 FEET N.1°56’08”W. (BEING AN ASSUMED 
BEARING) AND 60.00 FEET N.88°03’52”E. FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID SECTION 35; THENCE PARALLEL TO AND 60.00 FEET EASTERLY OF 
(MEASURED PERPENDICULAR TO) THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 35 
N.1°56’08”W. 100.00 FEET; THENCE 
N.88°09’56”E. 54.77 FEET; THENCE 
S.1°50’04”E. 100.00 FEET; THENCE 
S.88°10’30”W. 9.55 FEET; THENCE 
S.43°09’40”W. 16.30 FEET; THENCE 
S.88°09’47”W. 15.00 FEET; THENCE 
N.1°50’13”W. 11.53 FEET; THENCE 
S.88°10’04”W. 18.52 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.131 
ACRES. 

 
 
 
ALSO:  Annexation Ordinance No. 957 



14 

 
 
35-14-22 N ½ W ½ SE ¼ SW ¼ 10 Acres M/L and 35-14-22 E ¼ SW ¼ SW ¼ 10 Acres M/L, 
both in Johnson County, Kansas. 
 
 
ALSO:   
 
Beginning at a point 1,294 feet West of the Northeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of 
Section 3, Township 15, Range 22; thence South 355 feet, thence West 306 feet, thence North 
355 feet, thence East 306 feet to the point of beginning, Johnson County, Kansas, except that 
part in streets or roads. 
 
ALSO: Annexation Ordinance No. 976 (Approved August 28, 2014) 
 
Consists of right-of-way from Kansas Department of Transportation, to the City of Edgerton 
recorded in Book 201402 on page 1715 at the Johnson County Register of Deeds and 
described as follows:  
 
(a) A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 4, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of 
the 6th P.M., Johnson County, Kansas; described in deed recorded in Book 201109, Page 7810, 
and recited verbatim as follows: "(a) A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 4, 
Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., described as follows: BEGINNING at the 
Southeast corner of said Quarter Section; FIRST COURSE, thence on an assume bearing of 
South 88 degrees 29 minutes 07 seconds West, 656.98 feet along the South line of said 
Quarter Section; SECOND COURSE, thence North 01 degree 30 minutes 53 seconds West, 
20.00 feet to the Northerly right of way line of existing 199th Street; THIRD COURSE, thence 
North 61 degrees 55 minutes 13 seconds East, 111.80 feet; Fourth Course, Thence North 88 
degrees 29 minutes 07 seconds East, 350.00 feet; FIFTH COURSE, thence North 70 degrees 
39 minutes 15 seconds East, 194.76 feet to the Westerly right of way line of existing Homestead 
Lane; SIXTH COURSE, thence North 02 degrees 12 minutes 32 seconds West, 1186.18 feet 
along said Westerly right of way line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said Southeast 
Quarter Section; SEVENTH COURSE; thence North 88 degrees 31 minutes 39 seconds East, 
20.00 feet along said North line to the Northeast corner of said Southeast Quarter of the 
Southeast Quarter Section; EIGHTH COURSE, thence South 02 degrees 12 minutes 32 
seconds East, 1315.81 feet along the East line of said Quarter Section to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 1.70 acres, which includes 0.90 acre of 
existing right of way, resulting in an acquisition of 0.80 acre, more or less."  

 
(b) A tract of land in the Northwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of 
the 6th P.M., Johnson County, Kansas; as described in deed recorded in Book 201204, Page 
1961, and recited verbatim as follows: "(a) A tract of land in the Northwest Quarter Section 3, 
Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., described as follows: Beginning at the 
Southwest corner of said Quarter Section: FIRST COURSE, thence on an assumed bearing of 
North 88 degrees 26 minutes 03 seconds East, 300.63 feet along the South line of said Quarter 
Section; SECOND COURSE, thence North 01 degree 49 minutes 33 seconds West, 319.56 
feet; THIRD COURSE, thence North 23 degrees 37 minutes 38 seconds West, 53.85 feet; 
FOURTH COURSE, thence North 01 degree 49 minutes 33 seconds West, 2148.99 feet; FIFTH 
COURSE, thence North 43 degrees 14 minutes 32 seconds East, 102.62 feet; SIXTH 
COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 10 minutes 23 seconds East, 666.09 feet to the West line of 
a tract of land described in a deed recorded in Book 3047, Page 6 in the Register of Deeds 
Office, Johnson County, Kansas; SEVENTH COURSE, thence North 01 degree 49 minutes 37 
seconds West, 30.00 feet along said West line; EIGHTH COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 10 



15 

 
minutes 23 seconds East, 306.00 feet to the East line of said tract of land; NINTH COURSE, 
thence North 01 degree 49 minutes 37 seconds West, 30.00 feet along said East line to the 
North line of said Quarter Section; TENTH COURSE, thence South 88 degrees 10 minutes 23 
seconds West, 1341.25 feet along said North line to the Northwest corner of said Quarter 
Section; ELEVENTH COURSE, thence South 02 degrees 10 minutes 09 seconds East, 2649.70 
feet along the West line of said Quarter Section to the POINT OF BEGINNING. The above 
described tract contains 19.00 acres, which includes 1.82 acres of existing right of way, 
resulting in an acquisition of 17.18 acres, more or less." 
 
(c) A tract of land in the Southwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of 
the 6th P.M., Johnson County, KS; as described in District Court Case Number 11 CV 8581, 
tract 12 (a), and recited verbatim as follows: " (a) A PERMANENT EASEMENT for highway right 
of way, removal of borrow material, or for other highway purposes over and upon a tract of land 
in the Southwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., 
described as follows: BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of said Quarter Section; FIRST 
COURSE, thence on an assumed bearing of North 88 degrees 26 minutes 03 seconds East, 
300.63 feet along the North line of said Quarter Section; SECOND COURSE, thence South 01 
degree 49 minutes 33 seconds East, 180.44 feet; THIRD COURSE, thence South 19 degrees 
58 minutes 32 seconds West, 53.85 feet; FOURTH COURSE, thence South 01 degree 49 
minutes 33 seconds East, 2200.00 feet; FIFTH COURSE, thence South 42 degrees 48 minutes 
23 Seconds East, 160.60 feet; SIXTH COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 24 minutes 21 
seconds East, 585.00 feet; SEVENTH COURSE, thence South 60 degrees 09 minutes 53 
seconds East, 105.48 feet to the Northerly right of way line of existing 199th Street; EIGHTH 
COURSE, thence South 01 degree 35 minutes 39 seconds East, 25.00 feet to the South line of 
said Quarter Section; NINTH COURSE, thence South 88 degrees 24 minutes 21 seconds West, 
1043.02 feet along said South line of the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; TENTH 
COURSE, thence North 02 degrees 12 minutes 32 seconds West, 2631.62 feet along the West 
line of the said Quarter Section to the POINT OF BEGINNING. The above described tract 
contains 18.04 acres, which includes 1.83 acres of existing right of way, resulting in an 
acquisition of 16.21 acres, more or less." 
 
ALSO: Annexation Ordinance No. 969 (Approved March 27, 2014) 
 
Tract 1 
The Northeast Quarter of Section 4, Township 15, Range 22, in Johnson County, Kansas.  
 
Tract 2 
The North Half of the Southeast Quarter, and the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 
of Section 4, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, EXCEPT beginning 270 feet 
East of the Southwest corner of said Southeast Quarter, thence North 75 feet, thence East 50 
feet, thence South 75 feet, thence West 50 feet to the point of beginning of said exception.  
 
Tract 3 
Beginning at the Southeast corner of the Northeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 
22 east; Johnson county, Kansas; thence North 990.0 feet and along the East line of said ¼ 
section; thence West 1,319.6 feet and parallel to the South line of said ¼ section; thence South 
990.0 feet and parallel to the East line of said ¼ section to a point on the South line of said ¼ 
section; thence East 1,320.7 feet and along the South line of said ¼ section to the point of 
beginning, except any part used or dedicated for streets, roads, or highways, also being more 
particularly described as follows: all that part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 
South, Range 22 East, Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas, described as follows: 
commencing at the Southeast corner of the Northeast Quarter of said section 3; thence North 



16 

 
89°48’35” West, along the South line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 3, a distance of 
40.00 feet to the point of beginning; thence continuing North 89°48'35" west along said South 
line, a distance of 1268.40 feet measured (1280.70 feet deeded) to the Southwest corner of the 
East half of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 3; thence North 00°29'36" East measured 
(North 00°44'12" East deeded), along the West line of the East half of the Northeast Quarter of 
said Section 3, a distance of 989.98 feet measured (990.00 feet deeded), thence South 
89°48'35" East, a distance of 1271.50 feet measured (1279.60 deeded) to a point being 40.00 
feet West of the East line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 3, thence South 00°40'22" 
West, parallel to the East line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 3, a distance of 990.00 
feet to the point of beginning, except an part used or dedicated for streets, roads, or highways.  
 
Tract 4 
The North ½ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 3, Township 15, Range 22, in Johnson County, 
Kansas, being more particularly described as follows: beginning at the Northeast corner of the 
Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, thence South 00°10'34" East, along the East line of the 
Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, a distance of 1316.57 feet to the Southeast corner of the 
North half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, thence North 89°47'10" West, along the 
South line of the North half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, a distance of 2627.95 
feet to the Southwest corner of the North half of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 3; thence 
North 00°19'17" East, along the West line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, a distance 
of 1315.19 feet to the Northwest corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, thence 
South 89°48'57" East, along the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 3, a 
distance of 2616.52 feet to the point of beginning, except any part used or dedicated for streets, 
roads or highways.  
 
Tract 5 
The Northwest Quarter of Section 2, Township 15, Range 22, in Johnson County, Kansas, 
EXCEPT a tract of land for highway right of way described as follows: Beginning at the 
Southeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of Section 2; first course; thence North along the 
East line of said Quarter Section 437.1 feet; second course; thence Southwesterly to a point on 
the South line 508.9 feet West of said Southeast corner; third course; thence East along said 
South line 508.9 feet to the place of beginning.  
 
Tract 6 
All that part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 2, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, 
Kansas, described as follows: Beginning at the Northwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of 
said Section 2; thence North 89 degrees 36 minutes 15 seconds East, along the North line of 
the Southwest Quarter of said Section 2, a distance of 2177.08 feet, to a point on the Northerly 
right-of-way line of I-35 Highway, said point being 508.90 feet West of the Northeast corner of 
the Southwest Quarter of said Section 2; thence South 48 degrees 50 minutes 08 seconds 
West, along said right-of-way line, a distance of 697.08 feet; thence South 89 degrees 36 
minutes 15 seconds West, parallel to the North line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 2, 
a distance of 1650.89 feet to a point on the West line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 
2; thence North 0 degrees 10 minutes 34 seconds West, along the West line of the Southwest 
Quarter of said Section 2, a distance of 455.20 feet, to the point of beginning, containing 20.00 
acres, more or less.  
 
ALSO: ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 954 (Approved October 24, 2013) 
 
A part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, 
more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Northwest 
Quarter; thence North 90 degrees East; along the North line of said Northwest Quarter, 1035.25 



17 

 
feet; thence South 0 degrees East 355.00 feet, 355.05 feet measured, to the true point of 
beginning; thence South 90 degrees East, 284.30 feet, 284.24 feet measured; thence South 00 
degrees 18 minutes 01 seconds West, 385.36 feet; thence North 90 degrees West, 282.28 feet; 
thence North 0 degrees West, 385.36 feet to the point of beginning, except those parts in 
streets or roads 
 
ALSO: ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 961 (Approved December 12, 2013) 
 
Ordinance No. 954 was amended by this Ordinance to include the flowing legal description for 
the property annexed by Ordinance No. 954: 
 
Beginning at a point 1,294 feet West of the Northeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of 
Section 3, Township 15, Range 22; thence South 355 feet, thence West 306 feet, thence North 
355 feet, thence East 306 feet to the point of beginning, Johnson County, Kansas, except that 
part in street or roads.  
 
ALSO: ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 990 (Approved January 8, 2015) 
 
Tract 1 
 
Part of the Northwest One-Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th 
Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas. Lying North of Highway 35 as now established, 
being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northwest 1/4, Section 10, Township 15 South, 
Range 22 East; thence South 02 degrees 03 minutes 46 seconds East along the West line of 
the said Northwest 1/4 a distance of 991.99 feet to a point; thence North 87 degrees 35 minutes 
22 seconds East, 280.86 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; thence continuing North 87 
degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds East, 362.18 feet to a point; thence South 02 degrees 03 
minutes 46 seconds East, 342.19 feet (deeded 342.20 feet) to a point on the North line of the 
South 1/2 of the said Northwest 1/4; thence North 88 degrees 12 minutes 35 seconds East 
along the said North line, 1487.52 feet to a point on the Northwesterly right-of-way of Highway 
1-35 as recorded in Book 201108, Page 1191; thence South 53 degrees 32 minutes 58 seconds 
West along the said highway right-at-way, 737.13 feet (deed 737.07 feet) to a point; thence 
South 64 degrees 51 minutes 34 seconds West along said highway right-at-way, 509.90 feet to 
a point; thence South 85 degrees 06 minutes 40 seconds West along said highway right-of-way, 
821.52 feet to a point; thence North 10 degrees 04 minutes 47 seconds West along said 
highway right-of-way, 802.50 feet to a point; thence North 15 degrees 12 minutes 50 seconds 
East along said highway right-of-way, 141.15 feet to a point; thence North 88 degrees 57 
minutes 08 seconds East along said highway right-of-way, 116.36 feet to a point; thence North 0 
degrees 38 minutes 21 seconds West along said highway right-at-way, 76.41 feet to the TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 25.073 acres, more or less. 
 
Tract 2 
 
Part of the North One-Half of the Northwest One-Quarter of Section 10 Township 15 South 
Range 22 East of the 6th Principal Meridian Johnson County, Kansas, being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northwest One-Quarter of said Section 10 
Township 15 South Range 22 East; thence South 02 degrees 03 minutes 46 seconds East 
along the West line of the said Northwest One-Quarter a distance of 991.99 feet to a point; 



18 

 
thence North 87 degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds East 286.86 feet to the True Point of 
Beginning of the herein described tract; thence North 00 degrees 38 minutes 21 seconds West 
along the highway right of way for Homestead Lane as now established, a distance of 54.71 feet 
to a point; thence North 87 degrees 34 minutes 33 seconds West along said right of way a 
distance of 100.50 feet to a point; thence North 08 degrees 11 minutes 20 seconds East a 
distance of 788.74 feet along said right of way to a point; thence North 66 degrees 15 minutes 
11 seconds East (per right of way document South 66 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West) a 
distance of 182.89 feet to point; thence North 88 degrees 24 minutes 11 seconds East along 
said highway right of way and along a line parallel to the North line of the said Northwest One-
Quarter (per right of way document South 88 degrees 24 minutes 21 seconds West) a distance 
of 460.00 feet to a point; thence North 56 degrees 58 minutes 36 seconds East (per right of way 
document South 56 degrees 58 minutes 34 seconds West) a distance of 105.48 feet to a point 
that is 25 feet South of the North line of the said Northwest One-Quarter; thence North 88 
degrees 24 minutes 11 seconds East along a line parallel to and 25 feet South of the North line 
of the said Northwest One-Quarter, a distance of 1530.70 feet to a point on the East line of the 
said Northwest One-Quarter; thence South 02 degrees 13 minutes 33 seconds East along the 
East line of the said Northwest One-Quarter (per right of way document South 02 degrees 13 
minutes 24 seconds East 1011.27 feet) a distance of 986.39 feet to a point In the Northerly right 
of way line of 1-35 as now established; thence South 53 degrees 32 minutes 58 seconds West 
along the North line of the said 1-35 right of way (per right of way document 540.15 feet) a 
distance of 540.10 feet to a point on the North line of the South One-Half of the said Northwest 
One-Quarter; thence South 88 degrees 12 minutes 35 seconds West along the North line of the 
South One-Half of the said Northwest One-Quarter a distance of 1487.52 feet to a point; thence 
North 02 degrees 03 minutes 46 seconds West a distance of 342.19 feet (deeded 342.22 feet) 
to a point; thence South 87 degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds West a distance of 362.18 feet to 
the True Point of Beginning and containing 63.347 acres, more or less. 
 
ALSO: ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 995 (Approved March 12, 2015) 
 
All that part of the Southwest Quarter of Section 2, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, 
Kansas more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the Northwest comer of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 2; thence South 
02°00'19" East, along the West line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 2, a distance of 
455.20 feet, to the Point of Beginning; thence continuing South 02°00'19" East, along the West 
line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 2, a distance of 1386.15 feet, to a point on the 
Northerly right-of-way line of 1-35 Highway, said point being 791.69 feet North of the Southwest 
corner of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 2; thence Northeasterly along said northerly 
right-of-way line, along a curve to the left having a radius of 11,309.16 feet and a chord bearing 
of North 49°19'45" East, a chord length of 782.39, for a distance of 782.55 feet, to a point 
1284.2 feet north and 610.9 feet east of the Southwest corner of the Southwest Quarter of said 
Section 2; thence continuing along said northerly right of way line, North 47°00'23" East, a 
distance of 1377.74 feet; thence South 87°46'29" West parallel to the North line of the 
Southwest Quarter of said Section 2, a distance of 1650.89 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
ALSO: ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 998 (Approved April 23, 2015) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: The West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 

14, Range 22 in Johnson County, Kansas EXCEPT that part in 
roads. 

 
PARCEL NUMBER: 2F221435-1001 



19 

 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 18501 Waverly Road 
 
ALSO: ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO. 1002 (Approved September 24, 2015) 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South. Range 22 East, in the City 
of Edgerton, Johnson County. Kansas, more particularly described as follows: 
 

Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Southeast Quarter, South 8819'51" West along 

the North line of said Southeast Quarter, a distance of 972.25 feet; thence North 0109'47" 
West, a distance of 989.98 feet to the Point of Beginning of the herein described tract; thence 
South 88°22'56" West, a distance of 339.24 feet; thence North 01°20'55" West, a distance of 
1,015.47 feet; thence North 88°09'08" East, a distance of 1,261.21 feet to the West right-of-way 
line of Waverly street, as now established; thence South 01°09'47" East along said West right-
of-way line, a distance of 1,020.56 feet; thence South 88°22'56" West a distance of 918.64 feet 
to the Point of Beginning, containing 1,282,190.21 square feet, or 29.44 acres, more or less. 

 
ALSO: ANNEXATION ORDINANCES NO. 998, WHICH WAS UPDATED BY ORDINANCE 
NO. 1028, AUGUST 11, 2016 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       The West Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 

14, Range 22 in Johnson County, Kansas. 
 
PARCEL NUMBER:  2F221435-1001 
 
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  18501 Waverly Road 
 
 

  



20 

 
ALSO: RIGHT-OF-WAY DESCRIPTIONS 1-17 

 

Legal Description - Right of Way 
 

(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 
 

Description 1 
 
Section 35-14-22 (Waverly Road and 191st Street):  
 
The West 20 feet of the Southwest Quarter of Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 14 South, Range 22, East 
of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas (Waverly Road R/W) 
and 
The South 20 feet of the West Half of the Southwest Quarter of Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 14 
South, Range 22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas (191st Street R/W) 
and 
The South 20 feet of the East Half of the Southwest Quarter of Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 14 
South, Range 22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas (191st Street R/W) 
 
The North 40 feet of the South 60 feet of the West Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Southwest Quarter of 
Section 35, Township 14 South, Range 22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, ALSO The East 40 feet of the West 60 
feet of the North 30 feet of the South 90 feet of the West Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Southwest Quarter 
of Section 35, Township 14 South, Range 22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, all being in Johnson County, 
Kansas (191st Street R/W) 
and 
The North 40 feet of the South 60 feet of the West 72 feet of the East Half of the West half of the Southwest 
Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 35, Township 14 South, Range 22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian. 



21 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 2 

 
Section 34-14-22 (191st Street): 
 
 
The South Sixty (60) feet of the tract of land described as the J.A. Pearce Tract in the Southwest Quarter of Section 
34, Township 14 South, Range 22 East as said tract is shown and described in the 1892 Re-Survey of said Section 
Township and Range in Johnson County, Kansas, being more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the Southeast corner of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 34; thence South 88 degrees 10 
minutes 27 seconds West, along the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 34, a distance of 360.36 
feet (5.46 chains as shown in said Re-Survey) to the Southeast corner of said J.A. Pearce Tract and the Point of 
Beginning of the tract of land to be herein described; thence continuing South 88 degrees 10 minutes 27 seconds 
West, along the last described course, a distance of 1,520.50 feet to the Southwest corner of said J.A. Pearce Tract, 
said point being 754.38 feet (11.43 Chains as shown in said Re-Survey) East of the Southwest corner of said Section 
34, as measured along the South line thereof; thence North 01 degrees 52 minutes 40 seconds West, along the 
West line of said J.A. Pearce Tract, a distance of Sixty (60) feet; thence North 88 degrees 10 minutes 27 seconds East 
along a line Sixty (60) feet North of and parallel with the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 34, a 
distance of 1,520.09 feet to a point on the East line of said J.A. Pearce Tract; thence South 02 degrees 16 minutes 32 
seconds East along the East line of said J.A. Pearce Tract, a distance of Sixty (60) feet the Point of Beginning. 



22 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 

Description 3 
 
Section 3-15-22 (191st Street): 
 
 
The North 20 feet of the East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22, East of the 
Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas 
and 
The North 20 feet of the West 30 feet of the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22, East of 
the Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas 
and 
The North 20 feet of the East Half of the Northwest Quarter, Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 22, in Johnson 
County, Kansas 
 
The South 20 feet of the North 40 feet of the East Half of the Northeast Quarter, Except the East 301.20 feet of the 
South 20 feet of the North 40 feet of the East Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 South, Range 
22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas 



23 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 4 

 
Section 4-15-22 (191st Street): 

 
A tract of land being a portion of the North Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 4, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East in Johnson County, Kansas, said tract of land being more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4; thence South 02 degrees 10 
minutes 23 seconds East along the West line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 462.00 feet to 
the Point of Beginning of the tract of land to be herein described; thence North 87 degrees 49 minutes 37 seconds 
East, perpendicular to the last described course, a distance of 253.39 feet; thence Northeasterly along a curve to 
the left, tangent to the last described course, having a radius of 1021.00 feet and a central angle of 18 degrees 02 
minutes 54 seconds, an arc length of 321.62 feet; thence North 69 degrees 46 minutes 43 seconds East, tangent to 
the last described curve, a distance of 1,194.46 feet to a point 20.00 feet South of the North line the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 4, as measured perpendicular to the North line thereof, being also a point on the South 
right-of-way line of West 191st Street as now established; thence North 01 degrees 26 minutes 39 seconds West, 
perpendicular to the North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 20.00 feet to a point on the 
North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, said point being 1,705.79 feet East of the Northwest corner of 
the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, as measured along the North line thereof; thence North 88 degrees 33 
minutes 21 seconds East along the North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 928.22 feet to 
the Northeast corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4; thence South 02 degrees 10 minutes 13 seconds 
East along the East line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 174.25 feet; thence South 87 
degrees 49 minutes 47 seconds West, perpendicular to the last described course, a distance of 20.00 feet; then 
North 02 degrees 10 minutes 13 seconds West along a line 20.00 feet West of and parallel with the East line of the 
Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 104.51 feet to a point 70.00 feet South of the North line of the 
Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, as measured perpendicular to the North line thereof; then South 88 degrees 
33 minutes 21 seconds West along a line 70.00 feet South of and parallel with the North line of the Northeast 
Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 280.00 feet; thence North 01 degree 26 minutes 39 seconds West, 
perpendicular to the North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4,a distance of 10.00 feet to a point 60.00 
feet South of the North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, as measured perpendicular to the North line 
thereof; thence South 88 degrees 33 minutes 21 seconds West along a line 60.00 feet South of and parallel with the 
North line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 205.15 feet; thence Southwesterly along a curve 
to the left, tangent to the last described course, having a radius of 1021.00 feet and a central angle of 18 degrees 46 
minutes 38 seconds, an arc length of 334.61 feet; thence South 69 degrees 46 minutes 43 seconds West, tangent to 
the last described curve, a distance of 1,254.33 feet; thence Southwesterly along a curve to the right, tangent to the 
last described course, having a radius of 1,141.00 feet and a central angle of 18 degrees 02 minutes 54 seconds, an 
arc length of 359.42 feet; thence South 87 degrees 49 minutes 37 seconds West, tangent to the last described curve 
and perpendicular to the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 253.39 feet to a point on 
the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, said point being 582.00 feet South of the Northwest corner of 
the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, as measured along the West line thereof; thence North 02 degrees 10 
minutes 23 seconds West along the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 120.00 feet to 
the Point of Beginning. 



24 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 5 

 
Section 4-15-22 (191st Street): 

 
A Twenty (20) feet wide strip of land over a portion of the North Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 4, 
Township 15 South, Range 22 East in Johnson County, Kansas, the centerline of said Twenty (20) feet wide strip of 
land being more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4; thence South 02 degrees 10 
minutes 23 seconds East along the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 462.00 feet; 
thence North 87 degrees 49 minutes 37 seconds East, perpendicular to the last described course, a distance of 
253.39 feet; thence Northeasterly along a curve to the left, tangent to the last described course, having a radius of 
1021.00 feet and a central angle of 18 degrees 02 minutes 54 seconds, an arc length of 321.62 feet; thence North 69 
degrees 46 minutes 43 seconds East, tangent to the last described curve, a distance of 1,043.76 feet; thence 
South 20 degrees 13 minutes 17 seconds East, perpendicular to the last described course, a distance of 120.00 feet 
to the Point of Beginning of the centerline of said Twenty (20) feet wide strip of land to be herein described; thence 
South 13 degrees 25 minutes 41 seconds East, 38.00 feet to the Point of Termination of the centerline of said 
Twenty (20) feet wide strip of land. 
ALSO the following described tract of land: 
A tract of land being a portion of the North Half of the Northeast Quarter of Section 4, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East in Johnson County, Kansas, said tract of land being more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 4; thence South 02 degrees 10 
minutes 23 seconds East along the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 462.00 feet; 
thence North 87 degrees 49 minutes 37 seconds East, perpendicular to the last described course, a distance of 
25.00 feet to a point on the East right-of-way line of Four Corners Road as now established and the Point of 
Beginning of the tract of land to be herein described; thence continuing thence North 87 degrees 49 minutes 37 
seconds East, along the last described course, a distance of 60.00 feet; thence North 02 degrees 10 minutes 23 
seconds West along a line 85.00 feet East of and parallel with the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a 
distance of 20.00 feet; thence South 87 degrees 49 minutes 37 seconds West, perpendicular to the last described 
course, a distance of 40.00 feet; thence North 02 degrees 10 minutes 23 seconds West along a line 45.00 feet East 
of and parallel with the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, a distance of 20.00 feet; thence South 87 
degrees 49 minutes 37 seconds West, perpendicular to the last described course, a distance of 20.00 feet to a point 
25.00 feet East of the West line of Northeast Quarter of said Section 4, as measured perpendicular to the West line 
thereof, being also a point on the East right-of-way line of said Four Corners Road; thence South 02 degrees 10 
minutes 23 seconds East along a line 25.00 East of and parallel with the West line of Northeast Quarter of said 
Section 4, being also along the East right-of-way line of said Four Corners Road, a distance of 40.00 feet to the Point 
of Beginning. 

 



25 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 6 

 
Section 10-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
 
Homestead Tract 5 
The West 20 feet of the South 912.62 feet of the North 1,904.61 feet of the Northwest Quarter of Section 10, 
Township 15 South, Range 22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas 



26 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 7 

 
Section 3-15-22 (191st & Homestead): 
 
The North 30 feet of the East 306 feet of the West 1341.25 feet of the Northwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 15 
South, Range 22, East of the Sixth Principal Meridian, Johnson County, Kansas 
 
Homestead Tract 1 
A PERMANENT EASEMENT for highway right of way, removal of borrow material, or for other highway purposes 
over and upon a tract of land in the Southwest Quarter of Section 3,Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th 
P.M., described as follow: BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of said Quarter Section; FIRST COURSE, thence on an 
assumed bearing of North 88 degrees 26 minutes 03 seconds East, 300.63 feet along the North line of said Quarter 
Section; SECOND COURSE, thence South 01 degree 49 minutes 33 seconds East, 180.44 feet; THIRD 
COURSE, thence South 19 degrees 58 minutes 32 seconds West, 53.85 feet; FOURTH COURSE, thence South 01 
degree 49 minutes 33 seconds East, 2200.00 feet; FIFTH COURSE, thence South 42 degrees 48 minutes 23 seconds 
East, 160.60 feet; SIXTH COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 24 minutes 21 seconds East, 585.00 feet; SEVENTH 
COURSE, thence South 60 degrees 09 minutes 53 seconds East, 105.48 feet to the Northerly right of way line of 
existing 199th Street; EIGHTH COURSE, thence South 01 degree 35 minutes 39 seconds East, 25.00 feet to the 
South line of said Quarter Section; NINTH COURSE, thence South 88 degrees 24 minutes 21 seconds West, 1043.02 
feet along said South line to the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; TENTH COURSE, thence North 02 
degrees 12 minutes 32 seconds West, 2631.62 feet along the West line of said Quarter Section to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 18.04 acres, which includes 1.83 acres of existing right of way, 
resulting in an acquisition of 16.21 acres, more or less. 



27 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 

Description 8 
 
Section 4-15-22 (Homestead): 

 
Homestead Tract 2 
A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 4, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., described 
as follows: BEGINNING at the Southeast corner of said Quarter Section; FIRST COURSE, thence on an assumed 
bearing of South 88 degrees 29 minutes 07 seconds West, 656.98 feet along the South line of said Quarter Section; 
SECOND COURSE, thence North 01 degree 30 minutes 53 seconds West, 20.00 feet to the Northerly right of way line 
of existing 199th Street; THIRD COURSE, thence North 61 degrees 55 minutes 13 seconds East, 111.80 feet; FOURTH 
COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 29 minutes 07 seconds East, 350.00 feet; FIFTH COURSE, thence North 70 
degrees 39 minutes 15 seconds East, 194.76 feet to the Westerly right of way line of existing Homestead Lane; 
SIXTH COURSE, thence North 02 degrees 12 minutes 32 seconds West, 1186.18 feet along said Westerly right of way 
line to the North line of the Southeast Quarter of said Southeast Quarter Section; SEVENTH COURSE, thence North 
88 degrees 31 minutes 39 seconds East, 20.00 feet along said North line to the Northeast corner of said Southeast 
Quarter of the Southeast Quarter Section; EIGHTH COURSE, thence South 02 degrees 12 minutes 32 seconds East, 
1315.81 feet along the East line of said Quarter Section to the POINT OF BEGINNING. The above described tract 
contains 1.70 acres, which includes 0.90 acres of existing right of way, resulting in an acquisition of 
0.80 acres, more or less. 



28 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 9 

Section 10-15-22 (Homestead): 

 
Homestead Tract 3 
A PERMANENT EASE MENT for highway right of way, removal of borrow material, or for other highway purposes 
over and upon a tract of land in the Northwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th 
P.M., described as follows: BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of said Quarter Section; FIRST COURSE, thence on 
an assumed bearing of North 88 degrees 24 minutes 21 seconds East, 1043.02 feet along the North line of said 
Quarter Section; SECOND COURSE, thence South 01 degree 35 minutes 39 seconds East, 25.00 feet to the 
Southerly right of way line of existing 199th Street; THIRD COURSE, thence South 56 degrees 58 minutes 34 
seconds West, 105.48 feet; FOURTH COURSE, thence South 88 degrees 24 minutes 21 seconds West, 460.00 feet; 
FIFTH COURSE, thence South 66 degrees 15 minutes 38 seconds West, 182.89 feet; SIXTH COURSE, thence South 08 
degrees 11 minutes 20 seconds West, 788.74 feet; SEVENTH COURSE, thence South 87 degrees 34 minutes 33 
seconds East, 100.50 feet; EIGHTH COURSE, thence South 00 degrees 38 minutes 21 seconds East, 54.71 feet to the 
North line of a tract of land described in a deed recorded in Book 2952, Page 62 in the Register of Deeds Office, 
Johnson County, Kansas; NINTH COURSE, thence South 87 degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds West, 280.86 feet along 
said North line of said tract of land to the West line of said Quarter Section; TENTH COURSE, thence North 02 
degrees 03 minutes 46 seconds West, 991.99 feet along said West line to the POINT OF BEGINNING. The above 
described tract contains 7.41 acres, which includes 1.04 acres of existing right of way, resulting in an acquisition of 
6.37 acres, more or less. 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 4 
A tract of land in the Northwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., described 
as follows: COMMENCING at the Northwest corner of said Quarter Section; thence on an assumed bearing of 
South 02 degrees 03 minutes 46 seconds East, 991.99 feet along the West line of said Quarter Section to the 
Northwest corner of a tract of land described in a deed recorded in Book 2952, Page 62 in the Register of Deeds 
Office, Johnson County, Kansas; thence North 87 degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds East, 20.00 feet along the North 
line of said tract of land to the Easterly right of way line of existing Homestead Lane and the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
FIRST COURSE, thence continuing North 87 degrees 35 minutes 22 seconds East, 260.86 feet along said North line of 
said tract of land; SECOND COURSE, thence South 00 degrees 38 minutes 21 seconds East, 76.42 feet; THIRD 
COURSE, thence South 88 degrees 57 minutes 08 seconds West, 116.36 feet; FOURTH COURSE, thence South 15 
degrees 12 minutes 50 seconds West, 141.15 feet; FIFTH COURSE, thence South 10 degrees 04 minutes 47 seconds 
East, 802.50 feet; SIXTH COURSE, thence North 85 degrees 06 minutes 40 seconds East, 821.52 feet; SEVENTH 
COURSE, thence North 64 degrees 51 minutes 34 seconds East, 509.90 feet; EIGHTH COURSE, thence North 53 
degrees 32 minutes 58 seconds East, 737.07 feet to the North line of the South Half of said Northwest Quarter 
Section; NINTH COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 12 minutes 35 seconds East, 52.72 feet along said North line of 
the South Half of Said Quarter Section to the Northerly right of way line of existing I-35 Highway; TENTH COURSE, 
thence South 53 degrees 33 minutes 09 seconds West, 2295.36 feet along said Northerly right of way line; 
ELEVENTH COURSE, thence North 20 degrees 33 minutes 10 seconds West,769.15 feet along said Northerly right of 
way line; TWELFTH COURSE, thence South 87 degrees 56 minutes 14 seconds West, 25.00 feet along said Northerly 
right of way line to said Easterly right of way line of existing Homestead Lane; THIRTEENTH COURSE, thence North 
02 degrees 03 minutes 46 seconds West, 912.62 feet along said Easterly right of way line to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 13.76 acres, more or less. 



29 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 10 

 
Section 10-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
Homestead Tract 6 
A tract of land for highway RIGHT OF WAY in the Northwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East, described as follows: BEGINNING at the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; thence East along the South 
line of said Quarter Section 257.7 feet; thence Northeasterly on an angle of 34 degrees 36 minutes 56 seconds to 
the left, 38.3 feet; thence Northwesterly to a point 750.0 feet North and 45.0 feet East of said Southwest corner; 
thence West 45.0 feet to the West line of said Quarter Section; thence South along said West line, 750.0 feet to the 
place of beginning. The above contains 2.60 acres, more or less, exclusive of the existing highway. 
 
and 
 
Homestead Tract 7 
A tract of land for highway RIGHT OF WAY in the West Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 
South, Range 22 East described as follows: BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of said Quarter Section; First 
Course, thence South along the West line of said Quarter Section, 539.3 feet; SECOND COURSE, THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY TO A POINT ON THE NORTH LINE, 785.8 FEET EAST OF SAID NORTHWEST CORNER; Third Course, 
thence West along said North line to the place of beginning. The above contains 4.63 acrs, more or less, exclusive of 
the existing highway. 
 
and 
 
Homestead Tract 8 
A tract of land for highway RIGHT OF WAY in the Northwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East, described as follows: BEGINNING at a point on the South line 257.7 feet East of the Southwest corner of said 
Quarter Section; First Course, thence East along said South line 528.1 feet; SECOND COURSE, THENCE 
NORTHEASTERLY TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE 1406.5 FET SOUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID QUARTER 
SECTION; Third Course, thence North along said East line 362.7 feet; FOURTH COURSE, THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 
TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING. The above contains 17.19 acres, more or less, exclusive of the existing highway.  



30 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 

Description 11 
 
Section 9-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
Homestead Tract 9 
A tract of land for highway RIGHT OF WAY in the East 53 1/3 acres of the Northeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 
15 South, Range 22 East, described as follows: BEGINNING at the Southeast corner of said Quarter Section; First 
Course, thence West along the South line of said Quarter Section 150.0 feet; SECOND COURSE, THENCE NORTH TO 
A POINT 150.0 FEET WEST AND 220.0 FEET NORTH OF SAID SOUTHEAST CORNER; THIRD COURSE, THENCE 
NORTHERLY TO A POINT 750.0 FEET NORTH AND 55.0 FEET WEST OF SAID 
SOUTHEAST CORNER; Fourth Course, thence East 55.0 feet to the East line of said Quarter Section; Fifth Course, 
thence South along said East line, 750.0 feet to the place of beginning. The above contains 1.66 acres, more or less, 
exclusive of the existing highway. 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 10 
A tract of land for highway RIGHT OF WAY in the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 15 South, Range 22 East 
described as follows: BEGINNING at the Northeast corner of said Quarter Section; First Course, thence South along 
the East line of said Quarter Section, 539.3 feet; SECOND COURSE, THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 1064.3 FEET TO A 
POINT 1136.6 FEET SOUTH AND 880.9 FEET WEST OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER; THIRD COURSE, THENCE 
SOUTHWESTERLY ON A CURVE OF 23,068.3 FEET RADIUS TO THE RIGHT TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE 399.3 FEET 
NORTH OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID QUARTER SECTION: Fourth Course, thence North along said West 
line, 343.7 feet; FIFTH COURSE, THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ON A CURVE OF 22,768.3 FEET RADIUS TO THE LEFT, 
1869.4 FEET TO A POINT 888.3 FEET SOUTH AND 1049.3 FEET WEST OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER; SIXTH COURSE, 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ON A TANGENT TO SAID CURVE 332.3 FEET TO A POINT 701.8 FEET SOUTH AND 774.2 
FEET WEST OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER; SEVENTH COURSE, THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 100.5 FEET TO A POINT 
637.4 FEET SOUTH AND 697.1 FEET WEST OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER; EIGHTH COURSE, THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 
300.0 FEET TO A POINT 469.0 FEET SOUTH AND 448.8 FEET WEST OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER; NINTH COURSE, 
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 100.5 FEET TO A POINT 421.2 FEET SOUTH AND 360.4 FEET WEST OF SAID NORTHEAST 
CORNER ; TENTH COURSE, THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 254.2 FEET TO A POINT 278.5 FEET SOUTH AND 150.0 FEET 
WEST OF SAID NORTHEAST CORNER; ELEVENTH COURSE, THENCE NORTH PARALLEL TO SAID EAST LINE, 278.5 FEET 
TO THE NORTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER SECTION; Twelfth Course, thence East along said North line, 150.0 feet to 
the place of beginning. The above contains 22.20 acres, more or less, exclusive of the existing highway. 



31 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 

Description 12 
 
Section 9-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
Homestead Tract 11 
A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 15 South, Range 22 East, Johnson County, Kansas, 
being all of that tract of land described in deed recorded in Book 4585 at Page 967 in the office of the Register of 
Deeds in and for said Johnson County, described verbatim as follows: 
"All that part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, described as 
follows: Commencing at the Northeast corner of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 9; thence South 0 degrees 34 
minutes 28 seconds East, along the East line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 9, a distance of 539.30 feet, to 
the point of beginning, said point being on the Southerly right-of-way line of I-35 Highway; thence South 55 degrees 
17 minutes 10 seconds West, along said Southerly right-of-way line, a distance of 1064.31 feet; thence 
Southwesterly on a curve to the right having a radius of 23,068.3 feet, a distance of 263.65 feet; thence North 83 
degrees 47 minutes 00 seconds East, a distance of 1105.31 feet, to a point on the East line of the Southeast Quarter 
of said Section 9; thence North 0 degrees 34 minutes 28 minutes West, along the East line of the Southeast Quarter 
of said Section 9, a distance of 635.34 feet, to the point of beginning, subject to that part in road." 
The above described tract contains 7.99 acres, more or less. 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 12 
All that part of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 9, Township 15, Range 22, Johnson County, Kansas, described as 
follows: Beginning at a point on the East line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9, said point being 1174.64 feet 
South of the Northeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9; thence South 0° 34' 28" East, along the East 
line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9, a distance of 300.00 feet; thence South 89° 52' 40" West, parallel to the 
South line of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 9, a distance of 856.44 feet; thence North 0° 34' 28" West, a distance 
of 208.63 feet; thence North 83° 47' 00" East, a distance of 860.58 feet, to the point of beginning, except and 
subject to that part used for road purposes. 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 13 
A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M. Johnson 
County, Kansas, described as follows: COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of said Quarter Section; thence on an 
assumed bearing of South 02 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds East, 1474.64 feet along the East line of said Quarter 
Section to the Northeast corner of a tract of land described in a deed recorded in Book 6548, Page 352 in the 
Register of Deeds Office, Johnson County, Kansas and the POINT OF BEGINNING. FIRST COURSE, thence continuing 
South 02 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds East, 370.03 feet along said East line to the Southeast corner of said tract 
of land; SECOND COURSE, thence South 88 degrees 10 minutes 13 seconds West, 825.00 feet along the South line of 
said tract of land: THIRD COURSE, thence South 02 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds East, 31.57 feet along said South 
line: FOURTH COURSE, thence South 87 degrees 37 minutes 04 seconds West, 133.07 feet along said South 
line: FIFTH COURSE, thence North 34 degrees 35 minutes 42 seconds West, 567.90 feet along said South line to the 
Southerly right of way line ofl-35 Highway; SIXTH COURSE, thence North 54 degrees 27 minutes 44 seconds 
East, 194.78 feet along said right of way line to the North line of said tract of land: SEVENTH COURSE, thence North 
82 degrees 04 minutes 33 seconds East, 243.54 feet along said North line: EIGHTH COURSE, thence South 02 
degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds East, 208.63 feet along said North line; NINTH COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 10 
minutes 13 seconds East, 856.44 feet along said North line to the point of beginning. The above described tract 
contains 10.69 acres, more or less, exclusive of the existing right of way. 



32 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 

Description 13 
Section 10-15-22 (Homestead): 

 
Homestead Tract 15 
A tract of land in the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., Johnson 
County, Kansas; being all of that tract of land described in the District Court of Douglas County, Kansas. Case No. 
08PR 92, described verbatim as follows: "Commencing at the SW Corner of Section 10, T. 15 S., R. 22 E., Johnson 
County, Kansas; thence N. 0°26'20" W. along the W. line of said Sec. 10 a distance of 950.32 feet to the TRUE POINT 
OF BEGINNING; thence continuing N. 0°26'20" W. along said W. line a distance of 129.70 feet to a point in the said 
W. line; thence S. 89°37'56" E. along Highway I-35 Right-of-Way a distance of 20.00 feet to a point; 
thence N. 33° 13 '08" E. along said Right-of-Way a distance of 1081.13 feet to a point; thence N. 21°55 '56" W. along 
said Right-of-Way a distance of 257.90 feet to a point; thence N. 37°30'04" E. along said Right-of-Way a distance 
517.30 feet to a point; thence S. 89°38 '01" E. a distance of 445.61 feet to a point; thence S. 0°26'21" E. a distance of 
1617.54 feet to a point; thence S. 89°33 '39" W. a distance of 1238.33 feet to a point; thence S. 0°26'20" E. a 
distance of 107.04 feet to a point in the centerline of a County Road; thence N. 43°26'53" W. along said centerline a 
distance of 73.30 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 31.930 acres more or less;" 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 16 
A tract of land in the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., described 
as follows: COMMENCING at the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; thence on an assumed bearing of North 
02 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds West, 788.66 feet along the West line of said Quarter Section to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING; FIRST COURSE, thence South 82 degrees 21 minutes 28 seconds East, 150.57 feet to the Westerly right 
of way line of existing Homestead Lane; SECOND COURSE, thence North 44 degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds East, 
20.00 feet to the East line of a tract of land described in a deed recorded in Book 2779, Page 506 in the Register of 
Deeds Office, Johnson County, Kansas; THIRD COURSE, thence North 45 degrees 24 minutes 19 seconds West, 
238.30 feet along said East line to the West line of said Quarter Section ; FOURTH COURSE, thence South 02 
degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds East, 161.66 feet along said West line to the POlNT OF BEGINNING. The above 
described tract contains 0.33 acre, which includes 0.16 acre of existing right of way, resulting in an acquisition of 
0.17 acre, more or less. 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 19 
A PERMANENT EASEMENT for controlled access highway right of way, removal of borrow material, or for other 
highway purposes over and upon a tract of land in the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 
22 East of the 6th P.M., described as follows: COMMENCING at the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; 
thence on an assumed bearing of North 02 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds West, 1001.40 feet along the West line 
of said Quarter Section; thence North 87 degrees 38 minutes 59 seconds East, 52.35 feet to the Northwest corner of 
a tract of land described in a deed recorded in Book 1099, Page 36 in the Register of Deeds Office, Johnson County, 
Kansas and the POINT OF BEGINNING; FIRST COURSE, thence North 87 degrees 38 minutes 59 seconds East, 40.30 
feet along the North line of said tract of land; SECOND COURSE, thence South 24 degrees 08 minutes 29 seconds 
East, 227.82 feet to the Easterly right of way line of existing Homestead Lane; THIRD COURSE, thence South 44 
degrees 33 minutes 11 seconds West, 20.00 feet to the West line of said tract of land; FOURTH COURSE, thence 
North 45 degrees 24 minutes 19 seconds West, 161.72 feet along said West line of said tract of land ; FIFTH 
COURSE, thence North 02 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds West, 107.04 feet along said West line of said tract of 
land to the POINT OF BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 0.29 acre, which includes 0.08 acre of existing 
right of way, resulting in an acquisition of 0.21 acre, more or less. 



33 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 14 

 

Section 9-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
Homestead Tract 17 
A PERMANENT EASEMENT for controlled access highway right of way, removal of borrow material, or for other 
highway purposes over and upon a tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East of the 6th P.M., described as follows: COMMENCING at the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; thence 
on an assumed bearing of North 02 degrees 08 minutes 59 seconds West, 365.07 feet along the West line of said 
Quarter Section to the POINT OF BEGINNING; FIRST COURSE, thence North 57 degrees 44 minutes 05 seconds East, 
802.62 feet, SECOND COURSE, thence North 56 degrees 06 minutes 51 seconds East, 503.92 feet; THIRD COURSE, 
thence North 63 degrees 13 minutes 19 seconds East, 318.45 feet to the South line of a tract of land described in a 
deed recorded in Book 6548, Page 352 in the Register of Deeds Office, Johnson County, Kansas; FOURTH COURSE, 
thence North 34 degrees 35 minutes 42 seconds West, 75.22 feet along said South line to the Southerly right of way 
line of existing I-35 Highway; FIFTH COURSE, thence on a curve of 23,068.31 feet radius to the right, an arc distance 
of 1603.53 feet along said Southerly right of way line with a chord which bears South 56 degrees 41 minutes 44 
seconds West, 1603.21 feet to said West line; SIXTH COURSE, thence South 02 degrees 08 minutes 59 seconds East, 
34.54 feet along said West line to the POINT OF BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 1.22 acres, more or 
less. 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 18 
A tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 6th P.M., described 
as follows: 
COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of said Quarter Section; thence on an assumed bearing of South 88 degrees 
25 minutes 52 seconds West, 150.01 feet along the North line of said Quarter Section to the Northerly right of way 
line of existing 1-35 Highway and the POINT OF BEGINNING; 
FIRST COURSE, thence continuing South 88 degrees 25 minutes 52 seconds West, 480.68 feet along said North line; 
SECOND COURSE, thence South 31 degrees 44 minutes 38 seconds West, 790.67 feet to the South line of a tract of 
land described in a deed recorded in Book 200402, Page 6033 in the Register of Deeds Office, Johnson County, 
Kansas; 
THIRD COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 21 minutes 34 seconds East, 359.58 feet along said South line to said 
Northerly right of way line; 
FOURTH COURSE, thence North 47 degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds East, 2 1.40 feet along said Northerly right of 
way line; 
FIFTH COURSE, thence North 53 degrees 33 minutes 09 seconds East, 300.00 feet along said Northerly right of way 
line; 
SIXTH COURSE, thence North 59 degrees 15 minutes 47 seconds East, 100.50 feet along said Northerly right of way 
line; 
SEVENTH COURSE, thence North 53 degrees 33 minutes 09 seconds East, 254.41 feet along said Northerly right of 
way line; 
EIGHTH COURSE, thence North 02 degrees 16 minutes 42 seconds West, 280.39 feet along said Northerly right of 
way line to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
The above described tract contains 8.16 acres, more or less. 



34 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

  
Description 15 

 
Section 9-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
Homestead Tract 22 
A PERMANENT EASEMENT for controlled access highway right of way, removal of borrow material, or for other 
highway purposes over and upon a tract of land in the Southeast Quarter of Section 9, Township 15 South, Range 22 
East of the 6th P.M., described as follows: COMMENCING at the Southwest corner of said Quarter Section; thence 
on an assumed bearing of North 02 degrees 08 minutes 59 seconds West, 743.86 feet along the West line of said 
Quarter Section to the Northerly right of way line of existing I-35 Highway and the POINT OF BEGINNING; FIRST 
COURSE, thence continuing North 02 degrees 08 minutes 59 seconds West, 34.31 feet along said West line; SECOND 
COURSE, thence North 56 degrees 43 minutes 53 seconds East, 1184.27 feet; THIRD COURSE, thence North 46 
degrees 34 minutes 14 seconds East, 500.22 feet; FOURTH COURSE, thence North 31 degrees 44 minutes 38 
seconds East, 303.33 feet to the North line of a tract of land described in a deed recorded in Book 6207, Page 605 in 
the Register of Deeds Office, Johnson County, Kansas; FIFTH COURSE, thence North 88 degrees 21 minutes 34 
seconds East, 359.58 feet along said North line to said Northerly right of way line; SIXTH COURSE, thence South 47 
degrees 50 minutes 31 seconds West, 79.10 feet along said Northerly right of way line; SEVENTH COURSE, thence 
South 53 degrees 33 minutes 09 seconds West, 326.02 feet along said Northerly right of way line; EIGHTH COURSE, 
thence on a curve of 22,768.31 feet radius to the right, an arc distance of 1872.54 feet along said Northerly right of 
way line with a chord which bears South 55 degrees 54 minutes 31 seconds West, 1872.0 l feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 3.46 acres, more or less. 



35 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 16 

Section 10-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
Homestead Tract 23 
A PERMANENT EASEMENT for controlled access highway right of way, removal of borrow material, or for other 
highway purposes over and upon a tract of land in the Northwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 
22 East of the 6th P.M., described as follows: COMMENCING at the Northeast corner of said Quarter Section; thence 
on an assumed bearing of South 02 degrees 13 minutes 24 seconds East, 1011.27 feet along the East line of said 
Quarter Section to the POINT OF BEGINNING; FIRST COURSE, thence continuing South 02 degrees 13 minutes 24 
seconds East, 307.20 feet along said East line to the Southeast corner of the North Half of said Quarter Section; 
SECOND COURSE, thence South 88 degrees 12 minutes 35 seconds West, 446.61 feet along the South line of said 
North Half of said Quarter Section; THIRD COURSE, thence N01th 53 degrees 32 minutes 58 seconds East, 540.15 
feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. The above described tract contains 1.57 acres, which includes 1.22 acres of 
existing right of way, resulting in an acquisition of 0.35 acre, more or less. 
 
 
and 
Homestead Tract 24 
A tract of land in the South Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 South, Range 22 East of the 
6th P.M., Johnson County, Kansas, described as follows: Being all of said South Half of the Northwest Quarter of 
Section 10 lying South of I-35 Highway. The above described tract contains 25.23 acres, more or less. 



36 

 
Legal Description - Right of Way 

 
(191st Street, Waverly Road, and Homestead Road) 

 
Description 17 

 

Section 10-15-22 (Homestead): 
 
Homestead Tract 14 
A tract of land for highway RIGHT OF WAY in the West Half of the Southwest Quarter of Section 10, Township 15 
South, Range 22 East, described as follows: BEGINNING at a point on the West line, 539.3 feet South of the 
Northwest corner of said Quarter Section; thence Northeasterly to a point on the North line, 785.8 feet East of said 
Northwest corner; thence East along said North line 57.0 feet; thence Southwesterly on an angle of 127 degrees 08 
minutes to the right 517.3 feet to a point 190.0 feet Southeasterly at right angles from said Northeasterly line; 
thence Southeasterly on an angle of 59 degrees 26 minutes to the left, 257.9 feet to a point 442.0 feet 
Southeasterly at right angles from said Northeasterly line; thence Southwesterly to a point 1560.0 feet South and 
20.0 feet East of said Northwest corner; thence West 20.0 feet, to said West line; thence North along said West line, 
1020.7 feet to the place of beginning. The above contains 11.04 acres, more or less, exclusive of the existing 
highway. 

 
 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider Approval of Resolution No. 12-08-16B Renewing an Existing Facility Use and 
Maintenance Agreement for the Bank of Knowledge and Authorizing Its Use by the Board of Directors of 
the Johnson County Library as a Library Facility 

 

Department:  Administration 

 

Background/Description of Item: On December 12, 2009, the City of Edgerton approved an 
agreement with the Board of Directors for the Johnson County Library for the use of the Bank of Knowledge 
as a library facility for the citizens of Edgerton. The full length of the agreement is five years.  
 
Due to Kansas cash basis laws the agreement must be renewed each year by the Governing Body. This 
resolution renews the agreement for January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017. The agreement includes 
changes suggested by Edgerton City Attorney and agreed to by Johnson County Library attorney. The 
agreement has been approved by City Attorney. The fees for 2017 remain the same.  
 
Enclosure: Tracked copy to indicate changes to Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement 

 Resolution 12-08-16B 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:  Approve Resolution No. 12-08-16B Renewing an Existing Facility Use And 
Maintenance Agreement for the Bank of Knowledge and Authorizing Its Use by the Board of Directors of 

the Johnson County Library as a Library Facility 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator  
Date: December 4, 2016 



 

 

FACILITY USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT - 

MEMORANDUM OF RENEWAL 

 

 THIS FACILITY USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT – MEMORANDUM OF 

RENEWAL (the Agreement) is made this _______  day of December, 20152016, by and between the 

City of Edgerton (the City) and the Board of Directors of the Johnson County Library.  The parties agree 

as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE:  The City’s Agreement to Make a Facility Available for a Branch Library. The City has 

renovated the former Edgerton Bank building (hereinafter “the Facility”) and desires to renew the Use 

and Maintenance Agreement (hereinafter “the Agreement”) authorizing JCL to use an agreed area of the 

Facility (hereinafter the “Library Site”) for the purposes of establishing and maintaining a public library. 

 

SECTION TWO:  JCL’s Agreement to Maintain a Branch Library at the Facility. JCL and the Board of 

County Commissioners of Johnson County, Kansas, have approved the establishment and maintenance of 

a branch facility of the Johnson County Library at the Facility and JCL has maintained a branch library 

facility at the Facility. JCL desires to continue to maintain a public library at the Library Site. 

 

SECTION THREE:  CITY’S RESPONSIBILTIES 

1. Making the Facility Ready for Use; Compliance with Codes and Laws. The City agrees that it 

shall, at its sole expense, maintain the Facility and the Library Site for use by JCL. The City 

warrants that the Facility and the Library Site will be maintained in a manner that assures that the 

Facility and the Library Site will be in compliance with all federal, state, county, and city laws 

and building and zoning codes, and that the City will, at its sole expense, bring the Facility or 

Library Site into compliance with such laws or codes, in the event that the parties are advised of a 

violation of any one of such laws or codes. 

 

2. Signage. The City agrees that JCL shall continue to be permitted to place appropriate signs on the 

exterior of the Facility identifying the library, subject to City zoning and building codes. 

 

3. Maintenance of the Facility. The City agrees that it will, at its sole expense, maintain the grounds 

and sidewalk surrounding the Facility; mow the grass; assure snow and ice removal from parking 

and sidewalk areas around the Facility; maintain all electrical, plumbing, mechanical, and 

heating, ventilation, and air  condition systems in good repair; maintain the floors, roof, walls, 

windows, entry areas and common areas of the Facility in a manner that makes the Facility safe 

and free of hazards for use by JCL patrons; arrange for pest and insect control; and arrange for 

capital improvements of the Facility that are needed to assure that the Facility is in good 

condition for use by JCL patrons and the citizens of Edgerton. 

 

4. Security. The City acknowledges that JCL will have to continue to take steps to secure the 

Library Site and to safeguard JCL materials used in the operation of the public library at the 

Library Site. The City agrees all such security measures are the sole prerogative of JCL. 

 

Style Definition: List Paragraph

Style Definition: Header

Style Definition: Footer

Style Definition: Normal: Font: (Default) +Body

(Calibri), Space After:  8 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08

Formatted: Space After:  10 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Don't add space

between paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing: 

Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  10

pt, Don't add space between paragraphs of the same

style, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  10

pt, Don't add space between paragraphs of the same

style, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li



 

 

SECTION FOUR:  JCL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Agreement to Use the Library Site. JCL agrees to continue to maintain a public library at the 

Library Site of the Facility. The parties agree that library services, selection of materials, and 

establishment of hours of service are the sole prerogative of JCL. 

 

2. Library Operations. During the term of this Agreement, JCL shall operate the hours of the library 

as determined by JCL with no prior approval from the City. The City, however, may recommend 

changes to the operational hours of the library, and JCL agrees to reasonably consider such 

recommendations. 

 

3. Usage of Facilities for City Functions.  JCL agrees to allow the City to use the Facility for City 

functions upon reasonable notice, as may be required when City Hall is not otherwise available 

for use and the Facility is not otherwise reserved for use by another party during regular library 

hours of service. 

 

4. Usage and Maintenance Fee. JCL agrees to pay the City a Usage and Maintenance Fee 

(hereinafter the “Fee”) in the sum of $500.00 per month. The Fee shall be paid monthly by the 

first day of the each month. 

 

5. Maintenance of Library Site and Payment of Utilities. JCL agrees to maintain and keep in good 

repair the Library Site (excluding capital improvements to the common areas, walls, floors, or 

ceiling) and agrees, at its sole expense, to contract for custodial services for the Library Site and 

to make all payments due for utilities used for the Library Site. 

 

SECTION FIVE:  FAILURE TO MAKE REPAIRS 

The City agrees to respond promptly when advised of needed repairs or service for the Facility, the 

surrounding grounds, sidewalks, and parking. In the event that the City does not, within a reasonable 

period of time, respond to the call for repair or services, JCL may undertake such repair or service on its 

own, and the City agrees to reimburse JCL for the cost of any such repair or service. 

 

SECTION SIX:  TERM 

The term of this Agreement shall be one year beginning January 1, 20162017 through December 31, 

20162017, upon execution by the parties of a Resolution renewing the Agreement. In the event that one of 

the parties elects not to renew this Agreement, it shall give the other party six months prior written notice 

of its intent not to renew. 

 

SECTION SEVEN:  INSURANCE AND HOLD HARMLESS 

1. City’s Insurance.  The City agrees toshall maintain commercial general liability insurance for the 

Facility in the amount of at least $500,000 per occurrence. Such insurance shall include 

provisions providing for the City to indemnify, defend, and hold JCL harmless for all loss that 

may occur or be claimed on or about The Facility resulting from the City’s acts or omissions, or 

of its agents or employees. The City also agrees to carry Workers Compensation insurance for its 

employees, and maintain adequate insurance on any personal property used, stored, or kept at The 

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Don't add space

between paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing: 

Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  10

pt, Don't add space between paragraphs of the same

style, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Don't add space

between paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing: 

Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  10

pt, Don't add space between paragraphs of the same

style, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li



 

 

Facility by the City. The City agrees to furnish JCL with certificates of insurance reflecting the 

above requirements. 

 

2. JCL’s Insurance.  JCL agrees toshall maintain commercial general liability insurance for such 

premises and its operations at the Facility in the amount of at least $500,000 per occurrence, and 

shall name City as an additional insured. Such insurance shall also include provisions providing 

for JCL to indemnify, defend, and hold City harmless for all loss that may occur or be claimed on 

or about The Facility resulting from JCL’s acts or omissions, or of its agents, employees, or 

invitees. JCL also agrees to carry Workers Compensation insurance for its employees, and 

maintain adequate insurance on its personal property used, stored, or kept at The Facility.  JCL 

agrees to furnish City with certificates of insurance reflecting the above requirements, or to 

provide certification that all such requirements are being met through insurance provided on 

behalf of JCL by Johnson County Risk Management. 

 

3. Waiver of Subrogation. Each of the parties releases the other party from all liability for damage 

due to any act or neglect of the other party (except as hereinafter provided) occasioned to 

property owned by the parties which is or might be incident to or the result of a fire or any other 

casualty against loss for which either of the parties is now carrying or hereafter may carry 

insurance; provided, however, that these releases shall not apply to any loss or damage 

occasioned by the willful, wanton, or premeditated negligence of either of the parties, and the 

parties hereto further covenant that any insurance that they obtain on their respective properties 

shall contain an appropriate provision whereby the insurance company, or companies, consent to 

the mutual release of liability contained in this paragraph. 

 

4. Kansas Tort Claims Act. Nothing herein shall be construed as either the City or JCL waiving the 

immunities and liability limitations afforded to them by the Kansas Tort Claims Act. 

Additionally, the parties specifically agree that the terms of this section, and the terms of this 

agreement, shall be subject to and limited by the Kansas Cash Basis Law (K.S.A. 10-1101 et seq.) 

and the Kansas Budget Law (K.S.A. 79-2935 et seq.), and amendments thereto. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands this _____ day of December, 20152016. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JOHNSON 

COUNTY LIBRARY 

        

_____________________________________  _____________________________________ 

Donald Roberts, Mayor     Neil ShortlidgePamela Robinson, Chair 

 

ATTEST:      ATTEST:      

 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 

 Janeice Rawles, City Clerk    Pam Robinson, Secretary 

 

 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Don't add space

between paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing: 

Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  10

pt, Don't add space between paragraphs of the same

style, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between

paragraphs of the same style, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", Space After:  10

pt, Don't add space between paragraphs of the same

style, Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: Normal, Space After:  10 pt, Don't add

space between paragraphs of the same style, Line

spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Font: Calibri

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.15 li



 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney   Fred J. Logan, Jr., Attorney 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Space After:  10 pt, Line spacing:  Multiple

1.15 li



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-08-16B 
 

A RESOLUTION RENEWING AN EXISTING FACILITY USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR THE 
BANK OF KNOWLEDGE OWNED BY THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, PURSUANT TO SECTION SIX OF 
THE AGREEMENT AUTHORIZED BY RESOLUTION NO. 12-10-09D, AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING ITS USE 
BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JOHNSON COUNTY LIBRARY AS A LIBRARY FACILITY FOR THE 
CITIZENS OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS  
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body understands the importance of providing a library and its resources to 
citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, libraries are excellent opportunities within the community for cultural and intellectual 
development; and 
 
WHEREAS, knowledge is the foundation for our democratic society; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Johnson County Library has greatly benefited the citizens in City of Edgerton since its 
inception in the Bank of Knowledge; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body wishes to continue its relationship with the Johnson County Library so as 
to continue to provide library services and functions for the betterment  and well-being of the 
community. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1.  Agreement.  The Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement, attached as Exhibit A, as 

approved by Resolution No. 12-10-09D, by and between the BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE JOHNSON 

COUNTY LIBRARY and the CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS shall be hereby renewed for a year ending 

December 31, 2017.   

 Section 2.  Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the City are hereby 

authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other documents, 

certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of 

this Resolution and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the 

aforementioned Agreement. 

 Section 3.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the City Council.  

[END OF PAGE] 

 

 

 



 

 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 

8th  DAY OF DECEMBER, 2016.  

 

       

ATTEST:     CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 
______________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Janeice Rawles, City Clerk                Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________________ 

Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement with Board of Directors of the Johnson County Library 

 

(the “Agreement”) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item:  Consider an Agreement with the Johnson County Sheriff’s Department for the Provision 
of Law Enforcement Services for Fiscal Year 2017 and Authorize the Mayor to Execute the Agreement  

 

Department:  Administration 

 

Background/Description of Item: The City of Edgerton contracts with the Johnson County Sheriff’s 
Office to provide law enforcement services to the citizens of Edgerton. The services as described in the 
agreement for 2017 are identical as previous years and include law enforcement duties customarily 
rendered by the Sheriff under the statutes of this State and the ordinances of the City. The County shall 
furnish and supply all necessary labor, supervision, equipment, communication facilities, and supplies 
necessary to maintain these services.  
 
The agreement states that generally the level of service shall be the same that is provided for the 
unincorporated area of the County by the Sheriff with the specific agreement that such service shall be 
provided within the Edgerton district on a full-time basis, twenty-four (24) hours a day. A fully-manned 
patrol car shall ordinarily be stationed in the Edgerton district and an additional fully-manned patrol car or 
patrol cars shall be available as needed from adjacent districts. The Edgerton district shall have the 
following boundaries: the Johnson County line on the west and south; 159th Street on the north; and the 
extension of Homestead Lane on the east. 
 
The City shall provide the Sheriff with sufficient advance notice of community events that may result in 
attendance by large numbers of people, that may result in the blocking of roadways or in significant 
vehicular traffic, or that may result in increased levels of law enforcement services to appropriately police 
the event. Additional costs for services shall be paid as allowed by the Agreement. 
 
The City shall provide (a) An attorney serving as municipal judge; (b) An attorney to prosecute all contested 
cases; and (c) A designated, qualified court clerk to supervise the court docket and take responsibility for 
all court records. If the City fails to meet the above-mentioned standards, it is agreed that City ordinances 
will not be enforced by the Sheriff.  
 
The term of the agreement is January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017. 
 
The annual cost of the contract increased by 1.45% from 2016 for a total of $269,865. This amount is 
slightly lower ($1635) that what was discussed during the annual budget process in 2016 and was included 
in the approved Fiscal Year 2017 Annual Budget. The approved 2017 budget includes $280,000 for 
contracted law enforcement services from the Sheriff’s Office.  
 
If the Sheriff's Office incurs overtime expenses for the purpose of providing officers to appear as witnesses 
to testify in the City's Municipal Court or for special events, such overtime expenses shall be billed as an 
additional cost provided that overtime shall not exceed $5,000 during the term of this Agreement.  
 
If the Sheriff’s Office incurs average fuel costs that exceed the average price per gallon of $1.67 used at 
the time of calculating the annual cost of the Agreement, a surcharge shall be billed to the City as an 
additional cost as a variable quarterly fuel adjustment based on the average of actual fuel costs incurred 
for the most recent calendar quarter. 



Enclosure: Draft Agreement with Johnson County Sheriff’s Office 

 Updated City of Edgerton Estimate of 2017 Patrol Costs 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s): K.S.A. 12-2908, K.S.A. 12-2909 

 

Recommendation: Approve an Agreement with the Johnson County Sheriff’s Department for the 
Provision of Law Enforcement Services for Fiscal Year 2017 and Authorize the Mayor to Execute the 

Agreement 

 

Funding Source: General Government – Law Enforcement – Contract Law Enforcement 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator  
Date: December 4, 2016 



















AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:  Consider Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement with Edgerton Historic Society for 
Edgerton Community Museum 

 

Department:  Administration 

  

Background/Description of Item: In 2013, the Edgerton Historic Society opened the Edgerton 
Community Museum (“Museum”) at 406 East Nelson adjacent to City Hall. In December 2013, Edgerton 
City Council approved a Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement with the Historic Society for the use of 
the museum building similar to the Agreement with Johnson County Library since it is housed in a building 
owned by the City.  
 
The enclosed draft agreement continues that arrangement for 2017. The agreement has a few minor 
changes from 2016 shown in the attached draft. A summary of those changes is below.  

 The City will remove snow and ice from the ADA ramp (in addition to the parking lot and sidewalk) 
 Agreement allows EHS to perform capital improvements to the museum with consent and approval of 

the City.  
 Allows EHS to change the days/hours of operation so long as within the hours of operation occur when 

the library is open as it provides the public restrooms for the museum.  

 Exhibits shall only operate on the first floor of the museum until such time that accommodations for 
ADA accessibility requirements would be made to the second floor 

 Second floor of the museum shall be used for storage purposes only with access to the storage limited 
to members of the EHS. 

 
The agreement contemplates that EHS would agree to pay the city a monthly Usage and Maintenance Fee. 
In the past years, City Council set the fee at $1. For 2017, City Council may determine an appropriate 
amount and insert it into the agreement.  
 
The agreement was previously reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. Additionally, the updated 
agreement has been reviewed and approved by and the Edgerton Historic Society (EHS).  
 
The draft agreement is valid for one year beginning January 1, 2017 through December 31, 2017. Either 
party may elect not to renew the agreement with two months prior notice.  
 

Enclosure: Draft Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement 

 

Related Ordinance(s) or Statute(s):   

 

Recommendation:  Approve Facility Use and Maintenance Agreement with Edgerton Historic Society for 
Edgerton Community Museum 

 

Funding Source: N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Beth Linn, City Administrator   
Date: December 7, 2016 



 

FACILITY USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS FACILITY USE AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (the Agreement) is made this 8th 

10th day of December, 20156, by and between the City of Edgerton (the City) and the Board of Directors 

of the Edgerton Historic Society (EHS).  The parties agree as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE:  The City’s Agreement to Make a Facility Available for the Edgerton Community 

Museum. The City owns a former home located at 406 East Nelson (hereinafter “the Facility”) and 

desires to enter into a Use and Maintenance Agreement (hereinafter “the Agreement”) authorizing EHS to 

use an agreed area of the Facility (hereinafter the “Museum”) for the purposes of establishing and 

maintaining the Edgerton Community Museum. 

 

SECTION TWO:  EHS’s Agreement to Maintain a Museum at the Facility. EHS has approved the 

establishment and maintenance of the Edgerton Community Museum at the Facility, and EHS desires to 

establish and maintain a public museum at the Facility. 

 

SECTION THREE:  CITY’S RESPONSIBILTIES 

1. Making the Facility Ready for Use; Compliance with Codes and Laws. The City agrees that it 

shall, at its sole expense, prepare the Facility and the Museum Site for use by EHS. The City 

warrants that the Facility and the Museum Site will be completed in a manner that assures that the 

Facility and the Museum Site will be in compliance with all federal, state, county, and city laws 

and building and zoning codes, and that the City will, at its sole expense, bring the Facility or 

Museum Site into compliance with such laws or codes, in the event that the parties are advised of 

a violation of any one of such laws or codes. 

 

2. Signage. The City agrees that EHS shall be permitted to place appropriate signs on the exterior of 

the Facility or on the property identifying the museum, subject to City zoning and building codes. 

 

3. Maintenance of the Facility. The City agrees that it will, at its sole expense, maintain the grounds 

and sidewalk surrounding the Facility; mow the grass; assure snow and ice removal from parking 

lot, ADA ramp and sidewalk areas around the Facility (not including the porch); maintain all 

electrical, plumbing, mechanical, and heating, ventilation, and air  condition systems in good 

repair; maintain the floors, roof, walls, windows, entry areas and common areas of the Facility in 

a manner that makes the Facility safe and free of hazards for use by EHS patrons; arrange for pest 

and insect control; and arrange for capital improvements of the Facility that are needed to assure 

that the Facility is in good condition for use by EHS patrons and the citizens of Edgerton. EHS 

could perform capital improvements to the museum with consent and approval of the City. The 

City may enter the Museum at any time to inspect and/or verify building structure and/or systems 

are functioning properly. 

 

4. Security. The City acknowledges that EHS will have to take steps to secure the Museum Site and 

to safeguard EHS materials used in the operation of the public community museum at the 

Museum Site. The City agrees all such security measures are the sole prerogative of EHS. The 

Formatted: Superscript



 

City will control the locks for entrance into the building including providing a key for use by 

EHS and changing the locks as necessary.   

 

5. Utilities. The City will be responsible to make all payments due for utilities used for the Museum 

Site. 

 

SECTION FOUR:  EHS’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

1. Agreement to Use the Museum Site. EHS agrees to establish and maintain a public community 

museum at the Museum Site of the Facility. The parties agree that museum services and , 

selection of materials, and establishment of days of operation and hours of service are the sole 

prerogative of EHS. 

 

2. Museum Operations. During the term of this Agreement, EHS shall operate the hours of the 

museum as determined by EHS so long as those hours of operation are within those that the 

Edgerton Library is open to the public. Edgerton Library provides public restroom facilities to the 

patrons of the museum. Exhibits within the museum open the public shall only operate on the first 

floor of the museum until such time as accommodations for ADA accessibility requirements 

would be made to the second floor. The second floor of the museum shall be used for storage 

purposes only with access to that storage limited to members of the EHS. with no prior approval 

from the City. The City, however, may recommend changes to the operational hours of the 

museum, and EHS agrees to reasonably consider such recommendations.  

 

3. Usage of Facilities for City Functions.  EHS agrees to allow the City to use the Facility for City 

functions upon reasonable notice, as may be required when City Hall is not otherwise available 

for use and the Facility is not otherwise reserved for use by another party. 

 

4. Usage and Maintenance Fee. EHS agrees to pay the City a Usage and Maintenance Fee 

(hereinafter the “Fee”) in the sum of $____  per year. The Fee shall be paid annually by the first 

day of the year. 

 

5. Maintenance of Museum Site and Payment of Utilities. EHS agrees to maintain and keep in good 

repair the Museum Site (excluding capital improvements to the common areas, walls, floors, or 

ceiling) and agrees, at its sole expense, to contract for custodial services for the Museum Site.  

 

6. Use of Property. EHS may place historical artifacts on the surrounding grounds with permission 

from the City.  

 

SECTION FIVE:  FAILURE TO MAKE REPAIRS 

The City agrees to respond promptly when advised of needed repairs or service as described in Section 

Three for the Facility, the surrounding grounds, sidewalks, and parking. In the event that the City does 

not, within a reasonable period of time, respond to the call for repair or services, EHS may undertake such 

repair or service on its own, and the City agrees to reimburse EHS for the cost of any such repair or 

service. 

 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

Formatted: Underline



 

SECTION SIX:  TERM 

The term of this Agreement shall be one year beginning January 1, 20167 through December 31, 20167, 

upon execution by the parties of a Resolution renewing the Agreement. In the event that one of the parties 

elects not to renew this Agreement, it shall give the other party two months prior written notice of its 

intent not to renew. 

 

SECTION SEVEN:  INSURANCE AND HOLD HARMLESS 

1. City’s Insurance. The City agrees to maintain insurance for the structure.  

2. EHS’s Insurance. EHS agrees to maintain throughout the term of this lease (and provide The City 

with a formal Accord 25 certificate of insurance documenting such coverage is in force), the 

following minimum coverages: 

a. Commercial General Liability on an occurrence basis, with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 

each occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate.  The City shall be included as an additional 

insured, on a primary basis, non-contributory with any other insurance carried by The City.   

b.  Commercial Property insurance covering all items of EHS property on the premises and 

tenant improvements and alterations.  The City and EHS hereby waive and request that their 

insurers waive any right of recovery/subrogation against each other on account of any loss or 

damage to property, to the extent covered by the commercial property insurance required 

above. 

c. Workers Compensation insurance providing statutory benefits to EHS employees and 

employers liability insurance with limits of not less than $500,000. 

d. Directors & Officers and Employment Practices Liability insurance with a per claim limit of 

not less than $500,000, and with defense costs provided in addition to such limit of liability.  

EPL coverage is also to extend to third party claimants. 

 

3. Hold Harmless. Each party agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold the party and their 

officers, employees, and agents free and harmless from and against any and all losses, penalties, 

damages, settlements, costs, charges, professional fees, or other expenses or liabilities of every 

kind and character arising out of or relating to any and all claims, liens, demands, obligations, 

actions, proceedings or causes of action of every kind and character in connection with or arising 

directly out of its error, omission or negligent act. 

 

4. Waiver of Subrogation. Each of the parties releases the other party from all liability for damage 

due to any act or neglect of the other party (except as hereinafter provided) occasioned to 

property owned by the parties which is or might be incident to or the result of a fire or any other 

casualty against loss for which either of the parties is now carrying or hereafter may carry 

insurance; provided, however, that these releases shall not apply to any loss or damage 

occasioned by the willful, wanton, or premeditated negligence of either of the parties, and the 

parties hereto further covenant that any insurance that they obtain on their respective properties 

shall contain an appropriate provision whereby the insurance company, or companies, consent to 

the mutual release of liability contained in this paragraph. 

 

5. Kansas Tort Claims Act. Northing herein shall be construed as the City waiving its immunities 

and liability limitations afforded to the City by the Kansas Tort Claims Act.   



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands this 8th 10th day of December, 20156. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

EDGERTON HISTORIC SOCIETY 

        

_____________________________________  _____________________________________ 

Donald Roberts, Mayor     Chair 

 

ATTEST:      ATTEST:      

 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 

 Janeice Rawles, City Clerk    Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:    APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

____________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Patrick G. Reavey, City Attorney   Attorney 

 

 

Formatted: Superscript



 
 

AGENDA ITEM INFORMATION FORM 
 

Agenda Item: Consider Approval of the Agreement to Participate in the Memorandum of Understanding 

for Use of the Countywide Mass Notification System (Notify JoCo) 

 

Department:  Public Works 

 

Background/Description of Item: Notify JoCo is a mass notification system that is designed to keep 
the residents, businesses and others informed of emergencies, including weather warnings, water main 
breaks, public safety alerts, and natural disasters. Local authorities in partner communities use Notify JoCo 
to alert interested parties keep them informed. Notify Jo Co is a partnership among Johnson County, Water 
One and participating cities.  
 
This system allows the City to provide notifications to the community via phone call, text message and 
email. When members of the community register they will have access to real-time messages from the 
county, city water and wastewater utilities, and any other partner cities they may choose. Notify JoCo is 
available to everyone - even non residents can register for notifications.  Registered individuals may also 
customize their profile to create notifications for their specific needs.  
 
Mass notifications can be used to provide community subscribers with the standard information as well as 
additional communication options such as City Newsletters, Community Events, and other non- emergency 
information.  
 
Notify JoCo has previously been discussed by council; however, based on previous cost-sharing model was 
cost prohibitive for the City of Edgerton to participate. For 2017, Johnson County restructured the cost-
share model prompting staff to reexamine the city’s participation. Due to the flexibility to use this tool for 
both emergency and non-emergency communication, staff recommends the city participate in the 
program.  
 
Participating cities share in the cost of the system based on population and adopted budget.  The cost for 
participating in 2017 is $358.  While this expenditure was not specifically budgeted for 2017, the cost is 
small enough to be absorbed into Public Works department of the 2017 Approved Budget. 
 
City Attorney has not reviewed the agreement. Any comments will be provided during December 8, 2016 
City Council meeting.  
 
Enclosure: Participation Agreement with Notify JoCo  
           2017 Cost-Share Model 

          Notify JoCo MOU Agreement  

 

Recommendation: Approve of the Agreement to Participate in the Memorandum of Understanding for 

Use of the Countywide Mass Notification System (Notify JoCo) 

 

Funding Source: General Government – Public Works – Professional Services  

 
Prepared by: Trey Whitaker, Public Works Superintendent  
Date: November 30, 2016 



AGREEMENT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR USE OF  

THE COUNTYWIDE MASS NOTIFICATION SYSTEM 
 

 This Agreement to Participate in the Memorandum of Understanding for the Use of the 

Countywide Mass Notification System is made and entered into by the City of Edgerton, Kansas, 

on this ____ day of __________, 2017 (“Effective Date”). 

 

 1.  APPROVAL BY STEERING COMMITTEE.  The City of Edgerton has requested to 

become a Participant under the Memorandum of Understanding for the Use of the Countywide 

Mass Notification System (“MOU”), which request has been approved by the Mass Notification 

System Steering Committee pursuant to Section 9 of the MOU. 

 

 2.  TERMS AND CONDITIONS.  In consideration of the Steering Committee’s 

approval, the City of Edgerton accepts and agrees to the terms and conditions of the MOU and 

agrees to pay all participation costs as set forth in the MOU.  

 

 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Agreement shall be effective upon execution by the City of 

Edgerton.  As of the Effective Date, the City of Edgerton shall be a Participant with all the same 

rights, benefits, and obligations under the MOU as the other Participants.    

 

 Accepted and agreed to by the City of Edgerton, Kansas, as of the date written above.  

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

_________________________________ 

Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________________ 

                        

 

ADDRESS FOR NOTICE PURPOSES: 

 

City of Edgerton, Kansas 

ATTN:  City Clerk 

404 East Nelson 

Edgerton, Kansas  66021 



Population* Pop % Pop Cost

2016 Budget 

Authority for 

Expenditures**

Budget % Budget Cost Mixed Avg
Mixed Avg 

Cost

Johnson County 580,159 35.99% $62,438 $696,115,962 37.58% $65,207 36.79% $63,822

Overland Park 186,515 11.57% $20,073 $241,710,000 13.05% $22,641 12.31% $21,357

Olathe 134,305 8.33% $14,454 $325,759,112 17.59% $30,514 12.96% $22,484

WaterOne 448,159 27.80% $48,232 $110,590,375 5.97% $10,359 16.89% $29,296

Lenexa 52,490 3.26% $5,649 $134,562,768 7.27% $12,605 5.26% $9,127

Shawnee 65,046 4.03% $7,000 $101,440,682 5.48% $9,502 4.76% $8,251

Leawood 34,579 2.15% $3,721 $94,257,100 5.09% $8,829 3.62% $6,275

Prairie Village 21,877 1.36% $2,354 $29,199,316 1.58% $2,735 1.47% $2,545

Merriam 11,288 0.70% $1,215 $53,367,551 2.88% $4,999 1.79% $3,107

Mission 9,491 0.59% $1,021 $19,146,454 1.03% $1,793 0.81% $1,407

Roeland Park 6,827 0.42% $735 $17,322,286 0.94% $1,623 0.68% $1,179

Mission Hills 3,601 0.22% $388 $10,033,476 0.54% $940 0.38% $664

Edgerton 1,736 0.11% $187 $5,644,268 0.30% $529 0.21% $358

Consolidated Fire District #2 48,019 2.98% $5,168 $10,983,866 0.59% $1,029 1.79% $3,098
NW Consolidated Fire District 7,979 0.49% $859 $2,022,446 0.11% $189 0.30% $524

1,612,071 $173,495 $1,852,155,662 $173,495 $173,495

2017 Everbridge Contract $168,495

Marketing $5,000

$173,495

*County and city populations determined by State of Kansas Budget website (2016 Certified Population) 

District populations determined by AIMS Website

**County, City, and Fire District Budgets determined by Department of Administration Municipal Budget Website (2016)

WaterOne budget determined by WaterOne 2016 Budget

Population Budget Mixed Average

http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://maps.jocogov.org/tornadotracks/default.aspx
http://www.waterone.org/home/showdocument?id=1730
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://maps.jocogov.org/ims/?z=11&ll=38.895,-94.83&op=0.5&ls=ya&bm=0
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://maps.jocogov.org/ims/?z=11&ll=38.895,-94.83&op=0.5&ls=ya&bm=0
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://budget.ks.gov/ecodemo.htm
http://maps.jocogov.org/ims/?z=11&ll=38.895,-94.83&op=0.5&ls=ya&bm=0
https://admin.ks.gov/offices/chief-financial-officer/municipal-services/municipal-budgets
http://www.waterone.org/home/showdocument?id=1730






















































CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 
Council Meeting Date:   December 8, 2016 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing 
 Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
Subject:   Bonds and Property Tax Abatement for ELHC XIII, LLC Project  
 
Hearing Notice Published:   November 30, 2016 in the Gardner News 
 

 
 
Summary: 
 
 The City has received an application for industrial revenue bonds and property tax abatement from ELHC XIII, 
LLC.  ELHC XIII desires to construct an approximately 400,000 sq. ft. spec warehouse and distribution facility to be 
located at 30700 W. 193rd Street in Edgerton, Kansas.  In order for the City to grant property tax abatement, the City must 
first hold a public hearing, consider the cost-benefit report and then approve a partial assignment of the Master Resolution 
of Intent. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
 A notice of the public hearing has been published at least seven days prior to the date of this meeting.  Written 
notice of the public hearing has also been provided to the County and the School District.  The Council should take 
comments from the public. 
 
Cost-Benefit Report 
 
 Columbia Capital Management, LLC has prepared a cost-benefit report for the proposed project.  The Council 
should consider the cost-benefit report and ask any questions the Council may have about the report. 
 
Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
 
 The City previously adopted a Master Resolution of Intent for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding Company, 
LLC (“Edgerton Land”) for constructing various projects in the Logistics Park-Kansas City, and provided for the issuance 
of up to $1,000,000,000 in industrial revenue bonds.  The Master Resolution of Intent allows Edgerton Land to assign 
portions of the Master Resolution of Intent to various companies that locate within the park.  The partial assignment of the 
Master Resolution of Intent assigns $35,325,000 of the Master Resolution of Intent to ELHC XIII for the purpose of 
constructing this project. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 12-08-16C 

 

RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, 

LLC TO ELHC XIII, LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and 

develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and thereby to further 

promote, stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the State of Kansas; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City is authorized and empowered under the provisions of K.S.A. 12-1740 to 

12-1749d, inclusive (the “Act”), to issue industrial revenue bonds to pay the cost of certain facilities (as 

defined in the Act) for the purposes set forth in the Act and to lease such facilities to private persons, 

firms or corporations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City adopted Resolution No. 07-08-10A on July 8, 2010, as amended by 

Resolution No. 04-25-13A adopted on April 25, 2013 and Resolution No. 04-09-15A adopted on April 9, 

2015  (collectively, the “Resolution of Intent”) determining the intent of the City to issue its industrial 

revenue bonds in multiple series, the aggregate amount of all series not to exceed $1,000,000,000 (the 

“Bonds”), to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, improving and equipping the 

Logistics Park Projects (as defined in the Resolution of Intent) for the benefit of Edgerton Land Holding 

Company, LLC (the “Developer”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Resolution of Intent permits the Developer, with the consent of the City, to 

assign a portion of its interest in the Resolution of Intent to another entity, thereby conferring on such 

entity the benefits of the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related thereto; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to assign $35,325,000 of its interest in the Resolution of 

Intent to ELHC XIII, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (the “Company”), for the purposes of 

permitting the Company to acquire, construct and equip a commercial project, consisting of an 

approximately 400,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility (the “ELHC Project”), to be located at 

30700 W. 193rd Street in Edgerton, Kansas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to consent to such partial assignment of the Resolution of Intent to 

the Company. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY 

OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1.  Partial Assignment of Resolution of Intent.  The Governing Body of the City 

hereby consents to the assignment by the Developer of $35,325,000 of the Developer’s interest in the 

Resolution of Intent to the Company for the purposes of completing the ELHC Project, which is a 

Logistics Park Project.  The City agrees that the Company will now be entitled to the benefits of the 

Resolution of Intent to the same extent and on the same terms as the Developer with respect to the ELHC 

Project. 

 

 Section 2.  Authorization to Proceed.  The Company is authorized to proceed with the acquiring, 

constructing and equipping of the ELHC Project, and to advance such funds as may be necessary to 



 -2- 

Assignment of Resolution of Intent 
ELHC XIII, LLC Project 

accomplish such purposes, and, to the extent permitted by law, the City will reimburse the Company for all 

expenditures paid or incurred therefor out of the proceeds of the Bonds. 

 

 Section 3.  Benefit of Resolution.  This Resolution will inure to the benefit of the City and the 

Company.  The Company may, with the prior written consent of the City, assign its interest in this 

Resolution and the Resolution of Intent to another entity, and such assignee will be entitled to the benefits of 

this Resolution, the Resolution of Intent and the proceedings related hereto. 

 

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after 

its adoption by the Governing Body of the City. 

 

 ADOPTED this 8th day of December, 2016. 

 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 

 

By: _____________________________________ 

[SEAL] Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Janeice Rawles, City Clerk 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Scott W. Anderson, Bond Counsel 



!

!

 

6330 Lamar  
Suite 200 
Overland Park, Kansas 66202 

! !  

Jeff White, Principal 
913.312.8077 
jwhite@columbiacapital.com 

!
November!22,!2016!
!
Ms.!Beth!Linn!
City!Administrator!
City!of!Edgerton!
404!East!Nelson!
Edgerton,!Kansas!66021!
!
RE:$Cost)Benefit$Analysis$for$ELHC$XIII,$LLC$
!
Dear!Beth:!
!
Please! find! attached! the! results! of! our! costGbenefit! analysis! related! to! the! projected!
property! tax! abatement! to! be! granted! by! the! City! to! applicant! ELHC! XIII,! LLC,!which!
plans! to!construct!a!new!400,000!square! foot!distribution!and!warehousing! facility! in!
Logistics!Park!Kansas!City! (LPKC).!The!purpose!of! this!analysis! is! to! satisfy! the!City’s!
requirement! pursuant! to! KSA! 12G1749d! or! KSA! 79G251(a)(1)! to! undertake! a! costG
benefit! analysis!before!granting!a!property! tax!abatement.!Consistent!with!City!policy!
for!development!within!LPKC,!this!analysis!assumes!the!City!will!grant!a!100%!property!
tax! abatement! for! 10! years! with! the! applicant! paying! an! annual! paymentGinGlieuGofG
taxes!equal!to!$0.21!per!square!foot!on!the!building!to!be!constructed.!!
!
BACKGROUND 
As!part!of!negotiations!with!the!original!master!developer!on!the!potential! location!of!
LPKC! in! Edgerton,! the! Edgerton! City! Council! approved! an! incentives! program! that!
provides!tenGyear!property!tax!abatements!for!projects!locating!in!LPKC.!The!purpose!of!
these! abatements! was! to! ensure! that! rents! paid! by! the! eventual! users! of! buildings!
constructed! by! the! master! developer! would! be! competitive! against!
warehouse/distribution!developments!in!Olathe,!south!Kansas!City,!Riverside!and!those!
located! in! other! cities,! including! Dallas,! Chicago,! Memphis! and! Indianapolis.! Like!
Edgerton,!these!communities!also!have!incentives!programs!in!place!for!warehouse!and!
distribution!facilities.!
!
The! original! master! developer! reported—and! its! successor,! NorthPoint!
Development/Edgerton! Land! Holding! Company! (ELHC)! continues! to! make! the!
argument—that,! without! the! abatement! incentives,! largeGscale! warehouse! and!
distribution! facilities! would! not!materialize! in! LPKC! and! certainly! not! at! the! pace! of!
development!LPKC!has!seen!in!recent!years:!the!presence!of!the!abatements!was!and!is!
a!necessary!condition!to!the!development!of!the!project.!
!
 
 
 



  CBA for ELHC XIII, LLC • 2 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

ABATEMENT MECHANICS 
Under! Kansas! law,! every! ad! valorem! tax! abatement! is! a! 100%! abatement.! Cities!
granting! an! abatement! have! the! right! to! negotiate! paymentsGinGlieuGofGtax! (PILOT)!
payments!from!the!abatement!beneficiary!to!reduce!the!effective!value!of!the!abatement!
to! that! party.! PILOT! payments! are! distributed! by! Kansas! counties! to! all! taxing!
jurisdictions! affected! by! the! abatement! in! the! same! proportion! as! regular! property!
taxes.!
!
Property! tax! abatements! effectively! defer! a! portion! of! the! tax! benefit! on! new!
development! for! a! period! of! up! to! 10! years.! Although! property! tax! abatements! can!
create! a! loss! of! status! quo! ante! tax! revenues! for! taxing! jurisdictions,! abatements! at!
LPKC!have!a!very!limited!impact!on!existing!tax!revenues.!Because!the!vast!majority!of!
undeveloped!land!within!the!boundaries!of!LPKC!is!classified!for!property!tax!purposes!
as!“farming!or!ranch!operations,”!status!quo!ante!property!taxes!in!the!aggregate!within!
LPKC!tend!to!total!less!than!$50!per!acre!per!year.!
!
ECONOMICS 
The! subject! property! is! approximately! 25! acres! in! size! and! will! house! an! estimated!
400,000! square! foot! distribution! and! warehousing! facility.! Pursuant! to! the! City’s!
agreement!with! the!master!developer,! this! analysis! assumes! the!City!will! provide! the!
applicant!with!a!100%!property!tax!abatement!for!10!years.!We!have!further!assumed!
that,! consistent!with! its! agreement!with! the!master! developer,! the! City!will! impose! a!
$0.21!per!square!foot!per!year!PILOT,!or!$84,000!per!year.!!
!
The!table!below!reflects!the!immediate!impact!on!property!tax/PILOT!receipts!from!the!
subject!property,!assuming!a!status!quo!ante! tax!burden!of!$50!per!acre!per!year!and!
based!upon!November!2015!levy!rates!published!by!Johnson!County.!
!
    EXISTING TAXES NEW PILOTs ANNUAL NET TAX  
ENTITY LEVY % of TOTAL  LOST PAID GAIN/(LOSS) 
State of KS 1.500 0.96%  $ (12) $ 806  $ 794  
Johnson Co. 19.582 12.53%  (157)  10,521   10,365  
JCCC 9.469 6.06%  (76)  5,088   5,012  
JCPRD 3.101 1.98%  (25)  1,666   1,641  
Edgerton 33.622 21.51%  (269)  18,065   17,796  
USD 231 Uniform 20.000 12.79%  (160)  10,746   10,586  
USD 231 Capital 8.000 5.12%  (64)  4,298   4,234  
USD 231 Other 25.015 16.00%  (200)  13,441   13,241  
USD 231 Bond 16.170 10.34%  (129)  8,688   8,559  
Fire Dist #1 15.965 10.21%  (128)  8,578   8,450  
Library 3.912 2.50%  (31)  2,102   2,071  
       
 156.336 100.00%  $ (1,250) $ 84,000  $ 82,750  
!
COST-BENEFIT ANALYSIS DETAILS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
KSA! 12G1749d(2)! requires! notification! of! anticipated! abatements! only! to! counties! or!
school!districts!affected.!As!a!result,!our!analysis!focuses!on!financial!impacts!to!the!City,!
Johnson! County! and! USD! 231! Gardner/Edgerton! Schools! (the!District).!We! have! not!
calculated! the! costGbenefit! on! other! taxing! jurisdictions.! State! law! also! requires! the!
analysis! to! include! “the! effect! of! the! exemption! on! state! revenues.”! Our! modeling!
includes!such!an!estimate.!
!



  CBA for ELHC XIII, LLC • 3 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

Our! proprietary! costGbenefit! modeling! relies! on! a! number! of! key! assumptions! in! the!
calculation! of! net! present! value! benefit! to! the! City,! Johnson! County! and! the! District.!
Most!of!our!assumptions!are!derived!from!public!information,!although!some!inputs!are!
based! upon! dialogue! with! subject! matter! experts,! including! staff! of! the! Kansas!
Department!of!Revenue.!Some!of!these!key!assumptions!include:!
!
• An!evaluation!of! the!direct! costs!and!benefits!of! the!project.!Columbia’s!model!

does! not! include! indirect! or! “spinGoff”! effects! as! a! result! of! inputGoutput!
multipliers.!
!

• A! tenGyear! analysis! timeframe! for! each! individual! project,! matching! the!
maximum!permitted!term!of!the!abatement.!

!
• Direct!costs!to!the!City,!the!County,!the!school!district!and!the!State!as!estimated!

by! Columbia! based! upon! the! financial! reports,! expert! analysis! and/or!
conversations!with!key!staff!members!within!those!agencies!and!at!the!State!of!
Kansas.!Please!note!our!analysis!assumes!the!return!of!a!school!finance!formula!
that!provides!aid!to!the!District!on!a!per!pupil!basis!(see!below).!

!
• Where! applicable,! reliance! upon! statistical! data! as! reported! in! the! 2010! US!

Census.!
!
• The! use! of! a! discount! rate! comprised! of! two! components:! a! riskGfree! rate! of!

return! (the! current! yield! of! the! onGtheGrun! 10Gyear! US! Treasury)! plus! a! risk!
premium!of! two! (2)! percent.! The! value! of! the! discount! rate! is! a! proxy! for! the!
opportunity! cost! of! the! City! (and! other! agencies)! of! foregoing! the! future!
property!and/or!sales!tax!revenues!that!would!be!generated!by!the!development.!
Thought!of!another!way,!if!the!City!had!those!revenues!in!hand!and!placed!them!
in!an!alternative! investment!with! the!same!risk!characteristics,!what!would!be!
its!expected!rate!of!return?!

!
TREATMENT OF SCHOOL FINANCE FORMULA 
As!of!the!date!of!this!analysis,!the!mechanics!of!public!school!finances!in!Kansas!remain!
in! flux.! The! Kansas! legislature,! through! special! session! during! the! summer! of! 2016,!
resolved!immediate!judicial!concerns!about!funding!equity!that!might!have!delayed!the!
start!of!the!2016/17!school!year.!But,!lower!Kansas!courts!have!found!that!the!current!
block!grant!funding!mechanism!is!constitutionally!flawed!and!falls!hundreds!of!millions!
of!dollars!short!of!the!amount!of!state!aid!to!schools!necessary!to!satisfy!the!“adequate”!
funding! requirement!within! the! state! constitution;! appeals! to! that! lower! court! ruling!
remain!before!the!Kansas!Supreme!Court!and!are!as!yet!unresolved.!!
!
For! the! purposes! of! our! analysis,!we! have! assumed! the! existence! of! a! school! funding!
formula!that! increases!or!decreases!district!state!aid!based!upon!the!district’s!student!
enrollment.! The! district! court’s! findings! on! the! funding! adequacy! issue! were!
particularly! critical! of! the! current! block! grant! formula’s! failure! to! recognize! and!
compensate!schools!for!the!impacts!of!changes!in!enrollment.!Our!costGbenefit!modeling!



  CBA for ELHC XIII, LLC • 4 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

assumes!a!return!to!the!capitationGbased!funding!approach!that!has!prevailed!in!Kansas!
since!the!1990s.!
!
For!the!treatment!of!costs!in!the!model,!we!have!assumed!that!the!addition!of!one!new!
child! in! the! schools! increases! the! District’s! costs! by! an! average! cost! to! educate! the!
remainder! of! the! students! currently! within! the! District.! (This! approach! is! consistent!
with!our! treatment!of!new!city!and!county!residents!on!city!and!county!budgets.)!For!
small!changes!in!student!enrollment,!this!approach!likely!overGstates!the!cost!impact!to!
the!District:!a!District!with!5,500!students! is!very! likely! to!spend! the!same!amount! in!
the!aggregate!to!educate!those!children!as!it!would!if!its!enrollment!were!5,501!instead.!
!
It!is!important!to!note!that,!under!the!state!constitution,!the!obligation!of!funding!public!
schools! is! fundamentally! the! State’s! obligation.! The!majority! of! the! local! property! tax!
levies! imposed! by! the! District! automatically! adjust! to! provide! a! level! of! funding!
prescribed! by! school! funding! laws! or! regulations.! Put! another! way,! as! assessed!
valuations! decline,! property! tax! levy! rates! increase! to! produce! required! revenue;!
similarly,! as! assessed! valuations! increase,! property! tax! levy! levies! rollGdown! to! limit!
revenue!collected.!This!is!how,!for!instance,!school!districts!are!able!to!execute!“no!tax!
increase”! bond! issues—as! assessed! valuations! increase,! existing! debt! service! levies!
produce! higher! property! tax! receipts,! providing! schools! with! additional! financial!
resources!to!pay!principal!and!interest!on!debt!even!though!the!levy!rate!itself!has!not!
changed.!
!
The! one! exception! to! this! general! rule! is! the! levy! the!District!may! impose! for! capital!
purposes.!That!levy!is!capped!under!current!state!law!at!eight!mills.!Because!the!District!
imposes!the! levy!at! the!eightGmill! limit,!any!reduction! in!assessed!value! in!the!District!
reduces! tax! dollars! available! to! the! District.! Similarly,! increases! in! assessed! value!
produce!more!dollars!for!the!purposes!permitted!related!to!that!levy.!
!
As! demonstrated! in! the! “Economics”! section! above,! we! expect! most! projects! within!
LPKC! to! produce! positive! net! property! tax/PILOT! revenues! for! the! District! (and! all!
other! taxing! entities)! compared! to! existing,! undeveloped! property,! even! during! the!
term!of!the!tax!abatement!on!such!projects.!
!
USING THE COST-BENEFIT MODELING RESULTS 
The! output! of! the! model! is! presented! as! the! net! present! value! benefit/(cost)! of! the!
project!for!the!City,!County!and!school!district!over!the!10Gyear!life!of!the!abatement!on!
each!project.!The!net!benefit!(or,!if!negative,!cost)!of!the!incentive!package!is!presented!
in! today’s! dollars.! The! estimated! impact! on! State! revenues! is! presented! in! nominal!
(future!value)!terms.!We!also!provide!an!estimated!future!value!project!contribution!to!
the!City’s!Public!Infrastructure!Fund!(PIF).!While!the!modeling!shows!a!significant!net!
present!value!benefit!to!the!City,!it!is!important!to!note!that!the$majority$of$the$City’s$net$
benefit$is$reinvested$in$LPKC$through$the$PIF.!
!
In! the! preparation! of! this! costGbenefit! analysis,! Columbia! has! relied! upon! the!
information!provided!to!it!by!applicant!and!has!not!independently!verified!or!validated!
these!data.!!The!City!must!draw!its!own!conclusions!as!to!the!reliability!of!these!data.!!



  CBA for ELHC XIII, LLC • 5 
! ! !
!

! ! ! !  
!

!
Finally,! the! intent! of! this! analysis! and! of! the! applicable! statutes! is! to! inform! the!
governing! body’s! policy! debate! about! the! value! of! the! abatement! incentive! it! is!
providing!to!the!applicant.!The!project’s!generation!of!a!net!present!value!benefit!to!the!
agencies!affected!should!be!but!one!of!the!many!factors!in!the!governing!body’s!decision!
about!whether!and!how!much!incentive!to!provide!to!any!applicant.!
!
Thank!you!in!advance!for!your!thoughtful!consideration!of!the!analysis!attached.!Please!
let!me!know!if!you!have!any!questions.!
!
Respectfully!submitted,!
COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC 
!
!
!
Jeff!White!
Principal$



COLUMBIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC DATE OF ANALYSIS: 11/22/16

SUMMARY OF COSTS AND BENEFITS 
City of Edgerton, Kansas

APPLICANT INFORMATION:

Application Date: 11/17/16 Summary of Incentives Provided:
Firm Name: ELHC XIII, LLC
Firm Address: 4825 NW 41 St., Suite 500

Riverside, Missouri 64150

Firm Contact: Patrick Robinson
913.915.7150

SUMMARY OF INCENTIVE PACKAGE (LOCAL GOVERNMENT IMPACTS ONLY): PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES RECEIPTS:

City County School
Year (%) ($) (%) ($) County School ($) ($) ($)

2 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
3 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
4 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
5 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
6 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
7 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
8 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
9 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173

10 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173
11 100 647,921 100 0 0 0 18,065 10,521 37,173

SUMMARY OF PRESENT VALUE BENEFITS:

Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV Total Total Net Net PV
Year Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit Benefits Costs Benefit Benefit

2 375,282 199,112 176,169 161,912 118,089 123,357 -5,268 -4,841 423,576 388,030 35,546 32,669
3 374,130 199,112 175,018 154,207 116,687 123,357 -6,670 -5,877 423,576 388,030 35,546 31,319
4 374,169 199,112 175,057 147,868 116,742 123,357 -6,615 -5,587 423,576 388,030 35,546 30,025
5 374,210 199,112 175,098 141,792 116,800 123,357 -6,556 -5,309 423,576 388,030 35,546 28,784
6 374,253 199,112 175,140 135,966 116,862 123,357 -6,495 -5,042 423,576 388,030 35,546 27,595
7 374,298 199,112 175,185 130,381 116,926 123,357 -6,431 -4,786 423,576 388,030 35,546 26,455
8 374,345 199,112 175,232 125,028 116,993 123,357 -6,364 -4,540 423,576 388,030 35,546 25,362
9 374,394 199,112 175,282 119,896 117,064 123,357 -6,293 -4,304 423,576 388,030 35,546 24,314

10 374,446 199,112 175,334 114,976 117,138 123,357 -6,219 -4,078 423,576 388,030 35,546 23,309
11 374,501 199,112 175,388 110,259 117,216 123,357 -6,141 -3,860 423,576 388,030 35,546 22,346

3,744,028 1,991,125 1,752,903 1,342,285 1,170,517 1,233,569 -63,051 -48,227 4,235,757 3,880,300 355,457 272,178

SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT (over 10-year period):

Number of jobs to be created : 175

Number of new residents:
   City 6
   County 7
   School District 7

Expected 10-Year Contribution to PIF: 1,392,500$                    

Impact of exemption on state revenues: (79,409)$                         

100% real property tax abatement for a 10 year period, as well as a construction sales tax exemption for materials, with a PILOT 
payment of $0.21/s.f. per year.

0
0

School District Summary

0
0
0
0

Property Tax Abatement Construction Sales Tax Abatement Direct Incentives

County Summary

0
0
0
0

City Summary

City


	2017 Animal Permits
	Contractor for Janitorial Services
	Acceptance 2016 Chip Seal Program
	CMB Renewal for 101 E Morgan
	Resolution No. 12-08-16A City Boundary
	Resolution No. 12-08-16B Library Lease
	2017 Agreement with JCSO for Policing Services
	2017 EHS Museum Agreement
	MOU Notify JoCo
	Resolution No. 12-08-16C Assignment ELHC XIII

